
























DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors present the 103rd Annual Report along with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 
2020.

MACROECONOMIC LANDSCAPE 

i)  Global economic activity has been brought to a standstill by the COVID-19 pandemic, which is turning out to be 
unprecedented in its pan global impact and the toll it is taking on life and livelihood.

ii)  As the outbreak spread with an explosive suddenness and speed, lockdowns and social distancing halted economic 
activity across 200 countries with over 14.3 million infections and 0.6 million deaths.

iii)  Sharp reductions in GDP growth in advanced economies(AEs) ranging from (-) 3.4% to (-) 14.2% and in emerging 
markets (EMs) between 2.9% and (-) 6.8% (year-on-year or y-o-y basis) in Q1:2020 have been exacerbated in the 
ensuing months by a collapse in manufacturing as reflected in purchasing managers’ indices (PMIs), which have 
plunged into contractionary territory.

iv)  According to the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), global trade contracted by 
7.27% (q-o-q) in value in Q1:2020 and is expected to decline by 27% in Q2.

v)  In its June, 2020 update, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has projected that global output would contract by 
4.9% in 2020, under the baseline assumption of gradual recovery in activity starting in the second half of 2020. The 
OECD has projected a “double – hit” scenario in which a second wave of infections erupts in the later part of 2020; in 
this scenario, the global economy could contract by 7.6% in 2020.

vi)  Against this backdrop, swift and unprecedented central bank measures have resulted in a turnaround in asset prices, 
narrowed credit spreads significantly from their earlier peaks and helped improve investor sentiment towards EMs. 
Globally, banks bracing up for the incidence of bad assets have generally increased their provisions, as a prudential 
measure.

vii)  Looming over the global financial landscape is the fear of dollar shortage impeding the economic recovery.

viii)  Crude oil prices have recovered after sharp falls in March and the first half of April; Brent crude prices traded above 
USD 40 per barrel on June 30, 2020, up from the lows of April, 2020.

ix)  In its June, 2020 Oil Market Report, the International Energy Agency (IEA) projected global oil demand to fall by 8.1 
million barrels/day (mb/d), the largest in history, before recovering by 5.7 mb/d in 2021.

x)  Demand for industrial metals witnessed severe contraction and their prices have been bearish in the early part of 
2020, although the decline is not as severe as that of crude.

xi)  Gold prices remained elevated on hedging demand and it is further expected to increase.

xii)  CPI inflation remained subdued across major AEs and EMEs primarily due to a collapse in oil prices and compression 
in demand amidst lockdowns, while food inflation picked up due to supply disruptions.

xiii)  The adverse impact on low-income households is particularly acute.

xiv)  Adverse commodity price shocks can cause financial instability through various channels.

xv)  Strong multilateral cooperation remains essential on multiple fronts. Liquidity assistance is urgently needed for 
countries confronting health crises and external funding shortfalls, including through debt relief and financing through 
the global financial safety net.

xvi)  Beyond the pandemic, policymakers must cooperate to resolve trade and technology tensions that endanger an 
eventual recovery from the COVID-19 crisis.
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xvii)  The global community must act now to avoid a repeat of this catastrophe by building global stockpiles of essential 
supplies and protective equipment, funding research and supporting public health systems, and putting in place 
effective modalities for delivering relief to the neediest.

xviii)  Overall, there is an unprecedented uncertainty about global growth, though financial markets have broadly stabilised 
in response to unprecedented fiscal and monetary stimulus.

INDIAN ECONOMY

i)  On the heels of a prolonged 8-quarter slowdown, GDP growth in India slumped to its lowest level since the Global 
Financial Crisis to 4.2% in 2019-20, with Q4:2019-20 growth (y-o-y) at 3.1% turning out to be lowest in the history of 
the current (2011-12 based) GDP series.

ii)  High frequency indicators point to a sharp dip in demand beginning March, 2020 across both urban and rural 
segments. Domestic economic activity virtually came to a standstill in April, 2020; although for several sectors the 
contraction became less severe from May, 2020.

iii)  Agriculture and allied activities, however, showed continued resilience on the back of all-time production highs and 
huge buffer stocks of rice and wheat. Above normal rains predicted for 2020-21 also boded well for agricultural 
production.

iv)  During April-May 2020-21, exports and imports collapsed, with contractions of 47.5% and 54.7% (y-o-y), respectively. 
India’s trade deficit stood at USD 3.1 billion in May, 2020, the lowest recorded trade deficit since February, 2009. 
Compared to April, 2020, trade deficit narrowed during May with exports in May improving more than imports.

v)  Foreign portfolio investment (FPI) flows, which registered net inflows up to February, 2020, reversed into net outflows 
since March, 2020. In the foreign exchange market, the INR has depreciated relative to peer EM currencies on a year 
to date basis, although in more recent weeks, it has traded with an appreciating bias and underlying realised volatility 
has moderated.

vi)  Consequent upon the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in India, the RBI had announced regulatory and supervisory 
measures to inter-alia mitigate the burden of debt servicing and enable the continuity of viable businesses and 
households. Supervised Entities (SEs) have largely implemented these regulatory relief measures. Nearly half of the 
customers accounting for around half of outstanding bank loans opted to avail the benefit of the relief measures.

vii)  The prospects of the Indian banking sector are going to deteriorate considerably in the next one year, as earnings of 
the banking industry may be negatively impacted due to slow recovery post lockdown, along with lower net interest 
margins, elevated asset quality concerns and a possible increase in provisioning requirements. Macro stress tests for 
credit risk indicate that the GNPA ratio of all Scheduled Commercial Banks may increase from 8.5% in March, 2020 to 
12.5% by March, 2021 under the baseline scenario. If the macroeconomic environment worsens further, the ratio may 
escalate to 14.7 per cent under very severe stress.

viii)  The top three sectors identified as adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic are: (i) tourism and hospitality; (ii) 
construction and real estate; and (iii) aviation. Their prospects of recovery in the next six months appear bleak.

ix)  All major risk groups viz., global risks, risk perceptions on macroeconomic conditions, financial market risks and 
institutional positions affecting the financial system were perceived as ‘high’. Within the macroeconomic risks group, 
risks to domestic growth and the fiscal deficit were perceived to be in the ‘very high’ category, while risks on account of 
reversal of FIIs/slowdown in FDI, corporate sector vulnerabilities, collapsing real estate prices and household 
savings were perceived to be ‘high risk’ category.

x)  A combination of fiscal, monetary and regulatory interventions in India has kept financial markets from freezing and 
financial intermediaries functioning normally. Bank credit shows clear signs of risk aversion. Commodity market 
spillovers, except for oil, remain contained. Adequate levels of foreign exchange reserves provide a buffer. While the 
uncertainties still remain, restarting financial sector reforms on their path of convergence with global best practices 
and standards while adapting to the specific requirements of India’s developmental strategy should be the focus, 
going forward.
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BANKING & ECONOMIC SCENARIO – KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Key developments in India’s banking industry include:

i)  The digital payments system in India has evolved the most among 25 countries with India’s Immediate Payment 
Service (IMPS) being the only system at level 5 in the Faster Payments Innovation Index (FPII).

ii)  Transactions through Unified Payments Interface (UPI) stood at 1.15 billion in October, 2019 worth ̀ 1.91 lakh crore 

(US$ 27.33 billion).

iii)  To improve infrastructure in villages, 204,000 Point of Sale (PoS) terminals have been sanctioned from the Financial 
Inclusion Fund by National Bank for Agriculture & Rural Development (NABARD).

iv)  The RBI has launched a mobile app to help visually-impaired people to identify the denomination of currency notes. 
The application can scan the currency notes using the camera of the mobile phone.

v)  The emergence of niche players, especially payments banks and small finance banks, is expected to augment 
innovation in financial technology and provide further impetus to the agenda of financial inclusion.

vi)  The merger of 10 state-run banks into four lenders came into effect on April 1, 2020, amid the lockdown triggered by 
coronavirus outbreak. The amalgamation of 10 PSBs into four Banks include: (i) United Bank of India and Oriental 
Bank of Commerce (OBC) into Punjab National Bank (PNB) (ii) Syndicate Bank into Canara Bank (iii) Corporation 
Bank and Andhra Bank into Union Bank of India (iv) Allahabad Bank into Indian Bank. 

vii)  The Union Government will soon merge 3 PSU General Insurance Companies into one single insurance entity. These 
insurance companies are National Insurance Company Limited, Oriental India Insurance Company Limited, and 
United India Assurance Company Limited. 

viii)  To ensure faster transmission of Policy rate cuts to loan borrowers, the RBI mandated all the banks to link the new 
Personal, Retail, Housing, Auto and MSMEs loans to the External Benchmark based Rate with effect from October 1, 
2019.

ix)  The government has infused capital worth ̀ 1,06,000 crore in the current financial year in PSBs. 

x)  Punjab and Maharashtra Co-operative (PMC) Bank recently hit headlines due to financial irregularities. The issue 
brought to the fore, the challenges related to low capital base, weak corporate governance, inability to prevent frauds, 
and inadequate system of checks. 

xi)  To promote digital transactions in the Country, the RBI has directed banks that online money transfer through National 
Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) will be available 24x7 from December 26, 2019. The RBI has asked the 
participating member banks to keep adequate liquidity in their current account with the regulator at all times in order to 
facilitate the successful posting of NEFT batch settlements.

xii)  On December 31, 2019, RBI has asked all UCBs with deposits of over `100 crore to constitute a Board of 

Management (BoM) comprising experts to oversee their functioning. The BoM will be constituted by the Board of 
Directors (BoD) of the UCBs concerned within one year from the date of the RBI circular.

xiii)  The RBI directed large co-operative banks to report all exposures of ̀  5 crore and more to the Central Repository of 

Information on Large Credits (CRILC) on a quarterly basis with effect from December 31, 2019. The total exposure 
will include all fund-based and non-fund based exposure (like partial credit enhancement), including investment 
exposure on the borrower. 

xiv)  The RBI has instructed banks to make all online payments done through National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) 
and Real-Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) free of cost for savings account holders w.e.f. January 1, 2020. 

xv)  The RBI has revised its Supervisory Action Framework (SAF) for urban co-operative banks (UCBs) on January 6, 
2020. The move is to expedite the resolution of UCBs experiencing financial stress. 

xvi)  The RBI revised the exposure limits for urban cooperative banks (UCBs) to a single borrower and a group of 
borrowers to 15% and 25%, respectively, of tier-I capital (as against earlier base of  capital funds).  
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xvii)  RBI has mandated that UCBs shall have at least 50% of their aggregate loans and advances comprising loans of not 

more than ` 25 lakhs or 0.2% of their tier I capital, whichever is higher, subject to a maximum of ` 1 crore, per 

borrower/party.

xviii)  RBI has increased the overall priority sector lending target for UCBs to 75% (as against earlier 40%) of the adjusted 
net bank credit (ANBC) or credit equivalent amount of off-balance sheet exposure (CEOBSE), whichever is higher, 
gradually over a period of 5 years upto 2024. These RBI directives in respect of UCBs pose a greater challenge for the 
co-operative banking sector in terms of achieving the desired level of business and the bottomline.

xix)  The RBI introduced new measures to relax the impact of the COVID-19 induced lockdown such as:

 i) increase in the Short-term borrowing limits of States or ways and means advances (WMA) by 30% to enable the 
state governments to tide over the situation. The revised limits came into force on  April 1, 2020 and will be valid until 
September 30, 2020.

 ii) cancellation of the counter-cyclical capital buffer for banks for a period of one year.

xx)  The RBI announced that all banks and NBFCs had been permitted to allow a moratorium of 3 months on repayment of 
term loans outstanding on March 1, 2020, which was further extended upto August 31, 2020. In respect of working 
capital facilities sanctioned in the form of cash credit/overdraft, lending institutions were permitted to defer the 
recovery of interest applied in respect of all such facilities during the period from March 1, 2020 upto August 31, 2020. 
The accumulated accrued interest to be recovered immediately after the completion of this period. 

xxi)  The Government passed the Banking Regulation (Amendment) Bill, 2020 replacing the Banking Regulation 
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2020.  The amendment brings the Urban Cooperative Banks under the supervision of the 
RBI to provide for better management and proper regulation of these banks to protect the interests of the depositors. 
The amendment also allows the RBI to initiate a scheme for reconstruction or amalgamation of a bank without placing 
it under moratorium.

KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS:

The performance of the Bank at a glance is as follows:  
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 Particulars 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

 Deposits 6,945 7,601 7,876

 % growth (2) 9 3.62

 Advances 5,311 5,251 4,904

 % growth 4 (1) (6.62)

 Business-mix 12,256 12,852 12,780

 % growth 0.27 5 (0.56)

 Operating Profit 103.60 92.53 47.67

 Net Profit 48.53 40.26 3.07

 Gross NPA 317.16 200.80 361.07

 % of Advances 5.97 3.82 7.36

 Net NPA 189.86 88.58 243.78

 % of Net Advances 3.66 1.72 5.09

 (` in Cr.)



The profitability of the Bank for the year under review was greatly affected due to the following factors:

i)  The impact of demonetization which affected the business of many of our borrowers leading to their inability to pay the 
regular loan instalments. This eventually led to the rise in overdues and in few accounts turning NPAs.

ii)  The outbreak of Covid-19 and the resultant lockdown declared by the Government affected our recovery efforts to a 
great extent. The Bank had expected a recovery of around ₹ 70 Crores out of the NPA accounts, however, due to shut 
down of businesses during the lockdown, our borrowers were unable to meet their commitments in many cases.

iii)  In line with the RBI directions on Package of measures to mitigate the burden of debt servicing due to the disruption 
caused by COVID – 19, the Bank had provided its borrowers a moratorium on payment of the loan instalments and  
deferment of interest on the working capital limits enjoyed by borrowers.

iv)  The PMC Bank fraud had a great impact on the confidence of depositors on the Co-operative Banking sector in 
general. Your Bank was not an exception to this. The Bank lost deposits of more than ₹ 600 crores in a span of six 
months due to pre-mature withdrawals by the depositors. Further many Financial Consultants advised their 
Depositor-Customers (mainly the housing societies) to withdraw deposits from the Co-operative Banks. However 
your Bank could garner fresh deposits on account of the confidence and trust shown by the investors and depositors.

v)  Your Bank maintained enough liquidity to meet the requirement of pre-mature withdrawals of deposits. As a result, the 
deployment of funds towards loans and advances was constrained by around ₹ 100 Cr., resulting in a lower credit 
growth and a revenue loss.

vi)  The Credit growth of the Bank was also affected due to the general economic slowdown, low demand for credit due to 
lower investments in businesses, stringent regulations and processes, slowing down of certain industries like real 
estate, automobile industry, e-Commerce industry, etc. followed by the lockdown on account of Covid-19 at the fag 
end of the financial year.
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• Deposits of the Bank grew by 3.62% and reached ` 7,876 Cr. as at March 31, 2020, as against ` 7,601 Cr. in the 
previous year.

• Advances came down by 6.62% and reached ` 4,904 Cr., as against ` 5,251 Cr. in the previous year. 

• The business mix witnessed a marginal fall by 0.56% to ` 12,780 Cr. in 2019-2020 as against `12,852 Cr. in the 
previous year. 

• CD ratio stood at 62% compared to 69% last year. 

• Owned funds stood at ` 781.22 Cr. 

• NII as at end March, 2020 stood at 2.07%. 

• Operating Profit for F.Y.2019-20 was ` 47.67 Cr. Operating Profit per employee has decreased from ` 7.97 Lac to 
`4.20 Lac.

• Net Profit after tax and provisions, was ` 3.07 Cr. for F.Y. 2019-20.
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APPROPRIATIONS

The following appropriations are recommended for the financial year 2019-20, for your approval under item No. 2 of the 
Notice:

 A) Statutory Appropriations :- 2018-19 2019-20

 1 Statutory Reserve Fund  1,006 77

 2 Contingency Reserve Fund 403 31

 3 Education Fund  40 4

 B) Other Appropriations :-  

 1 Building Fund 166 -

 2 Bad and Doubtful Debt Fund 1,200 707

 3 Donation Fund 5 2

 4 Investment Fluctuation Reserve 107 -

 5 No Dividend recommended On Equity Shares (P.Y. @ 10% p.a.)  850 -

 6 No Dividend recommended On Perpetual Non-Cumulative
  Preference Shares (PNCPS) (P.Y. @ 8.50% p.a.) 125 -

 7 Ex-Gratia to Staff  835 -

 8 Staff Welfare Fund 90 54

 9 Members' Welfare Fund 20 20

 10 Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 203 70

  NET PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 1 2

  TOTAL 5,051 967

(T in Lacs)

CAPITAL TO RISK ASSET RATIO (CRAR) 

The Bank’s Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) stood at 13.18% as at the end of March 31, 2020 which is above the 
minimum required benchmark of 12% for a Foreign Exchange Authorized Dealer Category I license. 

The Bank’s Risk Weighted Assets at the end of March, 2020 amounted to ` 4,449.63 Cr. against which the Capital Funds 
stood at  ̀  586.64 Cr.

vii)  The Bank also had to bear the brunt of rumuors about its financial position and standing, post the PMC Bank fraud, 
due to the loss of confidence of the depositors in the Co-operative Banking sector.

viii)  The Bank has an exposure in form of LCBD with the PMC Bank resulting in addition to NPAs and reduction of profit on 
account of the provisioning made.

Way Forward:

i)  The Bank is strengthening its Credit monitoring team under the constant ongoing supervision of the Advances, Credit 
Monitoring and Recovery Committee of the Board. Board oversight is also being exercised. The Credit Monitoring 
Department is closely monitoring the Borrowers’ accounts for their performance.

ii)  Considering the present situation, the Bank has ensured that effective recovery mechanism will be implemented for 
recovery of NPAs and SMA  Accounts.

iii)  The Lockdown has begun to ease so has India’s growth Indicators. The RBI’s accommodative stance has injected 
abundant liquidity in the market, resulting in steepening of yield curve. The Bank’s Treasury Department will take 
opportunity of the onetime shifting of HTM portfolio, to book the profit.

iv)  The Bank will take consistent measures to control the administrative expenses and capital expenditure. 

v)  The Bank will review the rate of interest on Deposits to reduce the cost of funds and will also take steps to mobilize the 
CASA Deposits to improve the bottom-line.
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The Bank has so far issued four series of Long Term Subordinated Deposits and raised ̀ 152.92 Cr. under these series till 
March 31, 2020.

The Bank also raised capital funds through Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS).

Through the PNCPS issue, the Bank has garnered  ̀  13.64 Cr. as a part of Capital augmentation as at March 31, 2020.

The Bank shall strive to raise capital funds through various modes to strengthen the CRAR. 

DIVIDEND :

The Bank endeavors to have a strong capital base to sustain the confidence of its stakeholders, and to continue to develop 
and grow its business in the light of changing economic conditions.

The RBI vide circular No. DOR.BP.BC.No.64/21.02.067/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 has advised Banks as under:

“In an environment of heightened uncertainty caused by COVID-19, it is important that banks conserve capital to retain their 
capacity to support the economy and absorb losses. Accordingly, it has been decided that all banks shall not make any 
further dividend payouts from the profits pertaining to the financial year ended March 31, 2020 until further instructions.” 

In line with the above RBI directive, the Board of Directors has not recommended dividend on equity shares and on PNCPS, 
for the year ended March 31, 2020. The Bank shall act as per further RBI directives.  

SHARE CAPITAL 

Equity Share Capital:

The paid up capital of the Bank as on March 31, 2020 stood at  ̀  86.76 Cr. as compared to ̀  84.65 Cr. in the previous year. 
The number of shareholders stood at 56,601 members as compared to 55,071 members in the previous year.

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital (PNCPS):

As on March 31, 2020, the Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Share Capital (PNCPS) stood at ̀ 13.64 Cr. compared to 
`13.52 Cr. in the previous year. 

RESOURCE MOBILISATION   

The Bank’s deposits stood at ̀  7,876 Cr. as on March 31, 2020 registering a growth of 3.62% with an accretion of ̀ 275 Cr. 
over the previous year. 

The deposit mix is detailed hereunder: (T in Cr.)

 Type As on 31.03.2019 % As on 31.03.2020 %

 Savings 1,400 18.42 1,426 18.11

 Current 356 4.68 300 3.80

 Fixed 5,845 76.90 6,150 78.09

 Total 7,601 100.00 7,876 100.00

The Deposits of the Bank witnessed a major setback post the PMC Bank Fraud impact, resulting in withdrawal of over ̀  600 
Cr. of term deposits in a span of six months. The Bank was however able to overcome this crisis and achieve a deposit 
growth of 3.62%. The growth in deposits was further restricted due to the spread of Covid-19 and the resultant lockdown 
declared by the Government.

The Bank realizes the importance of growth in CASA for overall improvement in profitability. CASA constitutes 21.91% of 
the deposits at `1,726 Cr. The Bank shall endeavor to increase CASA in the current financial year by increasing its 
customer base.

The Bank revised the interest rates on deposits in September, 2019, April, 2020, and May, 2020, in line with the market 
rates.
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The Retail Credit constituted 33.89% of the total Credit portfolio compared to 32.60% last year. Thus, though there was less 
Corporate Demand, the Retail Credit picked up considerably due to the continued efforts for promotion of these loans.

To face the challenges of the general interest rate war, the Bank had to offer competitive rate of interest on advances. The 
Bank revised the interest rates on Retail Advances in May, 2019, January, 2020 (for a period upto 31st March, 2020) and in 
April, 2020, in line with the market rates.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit Risk is defined as the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or counter 
parties. In a bank, the portfolio losses stem from outright default due to inability or unwillingness of a customer or counter 
party to meet commitments in relation to lending, trading, settlement and other financial transactions. 

The Credit Risk Management Department (CRMD) is involved in formulating and conducting Risk Assessment Models / 
practices to examine, quantify and mitigate the risks associated with the Advances made by the Bank. The CMRD 
endevours to adopt new methods & techniques to assess the industry specific, sectoral & product specific risks through 
various studies conducted through Credit Administration Department (CAD) & Credit Monitoring Department (CMD).

The Bank ensures that the Credit proposals are thoroughly assessed to minimize the risk associated. Towards this end, the 
Bank has adopted the CRISIL RAM Model, a globally used credit rating tool for the Credit Risk Assessment. All wholesale 

credit proposals of T 3.00 Cr. and above are subjected to Credit Risk Assessment under the CRISIL RAM Model. This 

Rating model also covers all the Retail advances. The RAM standardizes credit assessment, facilitates maintaining the 
credit risk at an acceptable level, ensures quality of assets by minimizing non-performing assets and covers many 
additional parameters to provide an overall comprehensive score for the borrower which ensures that proper care and 
assessment is done while sanctioning the loan.

The Bank is taking continuous efforts towards improving and building more standardized and robust CRISIL RAM rating 
model, in line with the industry. For this improvement, the Bank has appointed a Committee including Directors. Post the 
standardization in parameters, necessary changes and implementation will be done after discussion with Industry Experts 
and CRISIL. 

The composition of Credit portfolio is detailed here under:

 Sector 2018-19 % 2019-20 %

 Retail 1,712 32.60 1,662 33.89

 Wholesale 2,437 46.41 2,313 47.17

 Others 1,102 20.99 929 18.94

 Total 5,251 100.00 4,904 100.00

(T in Cr.)

RESOURCE DEPLOYMENT

The Bank’s advances stood at ̀  4,904 Cr. as on March 31, 2020 witnessing a decline of  6.62% over the previous year. 

The Credit growth was greatly hampered due to the general economic slowdown, weak Corporate demand and also during 
the lockdown period declared on account of the Covid-19 pandemic.

A total Credit disbursement of  ̀ 100 Cr. was withheld during the lockdown period affecting the credit growth to that extent. 

Further, the Bank had to prudently deploy its funds for meeting the withdrawal of deposits consequent to the PMC Bank 
fraud crisis. The Bank was also focusing more on recovery of NPAs and ensuring quality assets.

These factors drastically brought down the credit growth by 6.62% over the previous year as also affected the profitability of 
the Bank.

The Credit Deposit (CD) ratio stood at 62.26 %. 

Net Interest Income (NII) stood at 2.07 % as at the end of March, 2020 compared to 2.82% as at the end of March, 2019.
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ASSET QUALITY 

The Bank’s Gross NPA and Net NPA stood at T 361 Cr. i.e. 7.36% of the Advances and T 244 Cr. i.e. 5.09% of the Net 

Advances respectively, as at the end of March, 2020.

The Bank endeavors to maintain a good asset quality. Whereas the Indian Banking Industry is facing serious challenge to 
maintain the asset quality, your Bank has taken all round efforts in controlling the slippages of accounts into NPAs as well as 
in the recovery of the NPA accounts.

However the lockdown declared consequent to the Covid-19 Pandemic put a set back to the Bank’s recovery efforts to a 

certain extent. A recovery of around  ̀  70 Cr. was expected but could not be achieved due to the sudden declaration of the 

lockdown.

The Bank has an exposure with the PMC Bank in form of discounted bills drawn under LCs. This exposure has now become 
a non-performing exposure. In terms of the RBI circular dated April 20, 2020, such non-performing exposure arising from 
discounted bills drawn under LCs issued by a UCB shall be fully provided within five years. This has resulted not only in 
addition to NPAs but also affected the bottom-line to the extent of the provisioning required to be made in the current year.

The stressed advances of the Bank are secured to the extent of more than 100% with collateral properties and appropriate 
legal steps for recovery including one time settlements are taken wherever required, on an ongoing basis. 

Monitoring mechanisms are in place to minimize slippages of accounts into non- performing.

The Bank has also adopted the ‘Willful Defaulters Policy’ and necessary action against the defaulting borrowers is being 
taken under the Policy.

To improve the Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR), requisite provisions by way of Bad and Doubtful Debt Reserve (BDDR) 
and Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund (BDDF) have been made towards NPAs in accordance with the guidelines issued by the 

RBI. The Bank has created additional BDDF of  ̀  7.07 Cr. during F.Y. 2019-2020 (P.Y. ̀  12 Cr.) by way of appropriation out 

of net profit. The PCR of the Bank stood at 32% as at March 31, 2020 as against 56% as at March 31, 2019.

During F.Y. 2018-19, the Bank had assigned rights of Stressed Credit Exposure amounting to ` 128.31 Cr. to Asset 

Reconstruction Companies (ARCs). The ARCs made gross recovery of ` 20.46 Cr. during F.Y. 2019-20. Security Receipt 

(SR) to the tune of  ̀  12.26 Cr. stands redeemed and outstanding SR as on March 31, 2020 was ̀  86.53 Cr.

INVESTMENTS

The Integrated Treasury Department is the custodian of the Bank’s cash / liquid assets and handles its investments in 
securities, foreign exchange and cash instruments. It manages the liquidity and interest rate risks on the balance sheet and 
is also responsible for meeting reserve requirements.

The Financial year 2019-20, started on a rather gloomy note for fixed income markets with slow credit post ILFS default, 
hawkish Fed, slowing growth and concerns on overrunning Fiscal deficit. However a series of measures by the RBI and the 
Government paved way for the softening of yields in the first half of 2019-20.

RBI delivered successive rate cuts, 160 bps cumulative, during the year 2019-20, thereby reducing repo rate from 6% to 
4.40%.

Rupee moved from ̀ 69.15 as at the end of March, 2019 to ̀ 75.66 as at the end of March 2020, a depreciation of 9.41%. 

India 10Y Govt. Bond Index yield fell from a high of 7.35% in March, 2019 to a low of 6.13% by March, 2020. More 
dramatically, money market yields saw maximum transmission due to combination of rate cuts, high liquidity and credit risk 
aversion. However, in the second half of 2019-20, a highly accommodative RBI notwithstanding, long term rates begun to 
face headwinds and benchmark 10 year yield rose to nearly 6.75% as concerns begun to mount on a possible large Fiscal 
slippage due to poor tax collections, which were much below the budget estimates. 

The Bank also utilised the Long Term Repo window launched by RBI to borrow `103 Cr. for three years at a low cost of 

5.15%.
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Profit from treasury-related activities (including forex treasury) increased from ̀  16.95 Cr. in 2018-19 to ̀  30.18 Cr. in 2019-

20. The treasury profit grew by 78% mainly due to higher realised gains in government securities and Mutual Fund 
portfolios. Besides this, the Bank also earned an interest income from investments of ₹189.74 Cr. in 2019-20 as against ₹ 
152.60 Cr. in 2018-19.

The Bank shall continue to improve the yield on investment for overall increase in profitability.

TECHNOLOGY

The Bank is continuously working towards upgrading its technology platform so as to facilitate seamless banking services 
across its branches as well as Bank's digital platforms. The Board and the Management are taking initiatives, to be amongst 
the top banks, which are leveraging technology to achieve supremacy in the Indian banking sector.

To improve the overall banking experience, the Bank now provides 24x7 NEFT with Straight Through Processing (STP), 
Bulk RTGS/NEFT enhancements and NFS charges' discounting for employees of certain marked corporates.

The Bank issues EMV chip enabled debit cards to its customers. To enhance the security further and also to comply with the 
RBI guidelines, the Bank has started upgrading its ATMs to be EMV enabled. This will help to reduce the risk of debit card 
frauds happening due to the card skimming devices installed on ATMs.

The Bank has implemented regional languages on Bank’s ATMs, VAS (Value Added Services) and Debit card management 
facility on its mobile and net banking applications.

The Bank has taken many initiatives aimed towards enhancing the cyber security framework of the Bank. Some of the 
major initiatives are implementation of Web Security, Email Security, Shared Security Operations Centre (SOC) & Security 
information and event management (SIEM).

In its endeavour towards delivering top-class customer banking experience, the Bank has taken up multiple cutting edge 
technology initiatives in the current year such as Digital Banking, Loyalty Program, Online Payment collection (for schools, 
hospitals, societies, etc.), UPI 2.0 upgrade, Private Cloud using HCI, Automated DR, Robotic Process Automation, Cyber 
Security using Artificial Intelligence and  Machine Learning. 

During the year, the Bank introduced the process of account opening and onboarding of customers through scan based 
system. This has resulted in a drastic improvement in Turn around time (TAT) for account opening which could be 
maintained within 24 hours. Due to the adoption of this system, the process of add-on services also got automated resulting 
in faster delivery of debit cards and cheque books.

The Bank shall continue upgrading its technological platform for enhanced customer service.

INITIATIVES OF THE ANCILLARY BUSINESS DEPARTMENT  

The Ancillary Business Department of the Bank focuses on enhancement of business in areas like CASA Deposit, and 
Ancillary Products viz; Insurance, Demat and Mutual Funds and evaluation of the Branch performance in these areas.

To achieve a higher operational efficiency and rendering better customer services, the Bank has created Clusters of the 
branches. 

The Bank has Corporate agencies with five Insurance companies and covers most of the Insurance products. It has on 
board four Mutual Fund AMCs and assists the customers to invest in SIP and lump sum Mutual Funds considering their 
profile and risk appetite.

The Bank has already in place the BSE Star platform for uniformity and higher efficiency in Mutual Funds business and is 
also in process of further digitisation of both Insurance and Mutual Fund business.
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The Bank’s Demat department has included the E-Insurance business in addition to existing business and has initiated 
efforts to get approval for Online Trading from competent authorities in collaboration with leading brokers.

To take the customer service to higher level, the Bank will soon be introducing Reward points structure for all the customers. 
The Bank is in the process of offering digital payment solution to various institutions like schools, colleges, co-op. housing 
societies and hospitals. Many of the CASA products will be re-launched with attractive offers to serve each class of 
customer. 

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS 

The Bank’s International Banking Division (IBD) offers various foreign exchange facilities including pre & post shipment 
finance (in rupee and foreign currency) and Import finance to its various clients in USD, EUR and GBP currencies.  During 
the year under review, the Bank has tied-up with IndusInd Bank for issuance of Travel Cards in 10 currencies, to its clients 
visiting various tourist destinations. 

The Bank has tied up with various Authorised Money changers including FRR Forex Pvt. Ltd., Thomas Cook Ltd., 
EBIXCASH World Money Ltd. (earlier known as Centrum Direct Ltd.), Pheroze Framroze and Unimoni Financial Services 
Ltd. Recently, the Bank has tied up with Kesari Forex Pvt. Ltd. for offering foreign currencies at competitive rates to our 
clients visiting overseas through our Branch network.

IBD has established correspondence relationship with more banks thus increasing our reach for advising Letters of Credit 
on behalf of Importer clients. 

The Bank has successfully implemented Payment Control Solution tool of SWIFT which helps the Bank to protect payment 
operations against fraudulent attacks thereby creating a more secured swift environment.

Training to Staff on various products including Non Resident deposits, Travel Cards, Currencies, Remittances and Letters 
of credit, SWIFT codes, Cyber security awareness etc. was undertaken to enhance their working knowledge in handling 
Foreign exchange transactions. 

During the current year, the IBD aims at establishing correspondence relationship in more countries and dealing in more 
currencies to serve our customers in a better way and is also planning to set up an NRI Cell to serve the NRI customers 
efficiently.

RECOGNITION

The Bank bagged the Best Bank award 2nd position in the category of ‘Deposits above ` 2000 Cr.’ for the year 2018-19, 

declared by the Brihan Mumbai Nagari Saharkari Banks’ Association Ltd., Mumbai. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank continues its tradition of conducting business ethically, in a transparent way, with the best corporate governance 
practices to protect the interests of the stakeholders. This includes compliances with regulatory requirement and being 
responsive to the growing customer needs. 

The Bank has a team of qualified and experienced Directors with expertise in their areas of operation, contributing to the 
Bank’s initiatives with their valuable experience. The Board ensures sound corporate governance mechanism that is in the 
interest of the stakeholders and the organization. 
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Board 13 12 9

Advances, Credit Monitoring & Recovery Committee

Advances 23 7 5

Credit Review 2 7 5

Recovery 12 7 5

Wilful Defaulters 1 7 4

Accounts, Audit & Investment Committee

Audit 14 6 4

Investment 11 7 4

Executive Committee      

Execution 13 5 4

Development & HR 12 6 5

Digitisation 12 6 4

Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring of 4 5 4

Large Value Frauds 

No. of
Meetings

No. of Directors
in the Board/ 
Committee

Average 
Attendance

Details of various meetings of Board and Committees, held during the year are given below: 

AUDIT & INSPECTION

The Bank has in place a system for internal and concurrent audit. All branches are covered under concurrent audit 
(monthly/quarterly) as also are covered under internal audit. The Accounts, Audit & Investment Committee of the Board 
gives directions, oversees the total audit function of the Bank, follows-up on the statutory / concurrent audit of the Bank and 
the inspection carried out by regulators. The Committee comprises of Directors with Professional qualification and 
expertise in Finance, Audit, Taxation and Accounting fields. 

The Information System Audit of the Bank was conducted by KP Business Consultants Pvt. Ltd., for the F.Y. 2019-20 and 
the same will be continued to be done on an annual basis by qualified external agencies.

The Bank envisages to have a system of Risk Based Internal Audit and will initiate suitable steps for its implementation 
during the current financial year.

During the year, RBI carried out its on-sight inspection of the Bank with respect to financial position as on March 31, 2019. 

VIGILANCE

The Vigilance department was set up in March, 2019 and is headed by the Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO). The CVO's role is 
to assist the Top Management in formulation, implementation and review of Bank's policy on vigilance matters in the Bank. 
The department was established primarily to check the incidence of fraud, cheating and forgery.

The Bank has expanded its footprints out of Maharashtra to four other states. The increased geographical spread, 
extensive use of technology, heavy volume of transactions, new range of products and increased incidences of frauds, 
cheating, etc. in the banking industry, has necessitated a more proactive and focused approach on part of the vigilance 
department. 
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While the cases of irregularities brought to the notice of the department are examined expeditiously, efforts are also made to 
educate the staff about preventive vigilance through class room lectures as well as small meetings held during the branch 
visits.

The vigilance department is also conducting Suo Moto investigations. These investigations are carried out on the basis of 
certain parameters and have an element of surprise in it. These inspections are quite effective in preventing the possible 
losses from vigilance point of view. 

REAPPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

In the 102nd Annual General Meeting held on June 27, 2019, M/s. A. P. Sanzgiri & Co., Chartered Accountants were 
appointed as Statutory Auditors. They have consented their willingness to be reappointed. Being eligible, the Board of 
Directors recommends their reappointment up to the date of the next  Annual General Meeting.

BRANCH EXPANSION

During the year, the Bank had sought permission from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to open 4 Branches under its Annual 
Business Plan 2019-20. However, the RBI had kept the Bank’s request on hold till further directions. Since the permission 
for Branch Expansion was deferred indefinitely, the Bank decided to consolidate its existing network of 109 Branches 
during the FY 2019-20. 

Further in terms of the RBI’s guidelines on constitution of a Board of Management, it shall be a mandatory requirement for 
UCBs with deposit size of ₹100 crore and above to constitute a Board of Management, to expand their area of operation and 
open new branches.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Creating a comprehensive and effective human resources management is a critical component to ensure the overall 
success of any business.  The Human Resource Department plays a strategic role in managing people and the workplace 
culture and environment. For effective working it is necessary to continually develop the employees’ competencies to 
improve the overall effectiveness of the organization.

Learning and development, often called training and development, forms part of an organisation's talent management 
strategy and is designed to align group and individual goals and performance with the organisation’s overall vision and 
goals.

To continuously improve the skills and knowledge of its employees, the Bank has conducted several training programs 
during the year on topics such as Credit Risk, Customer Engagement, Communication Skills, Cyber Security Awareness, 
FOREX Services, Insurance and Marketing of ancillary business, TDS & GST, Happyness at Work, KYC, Documentation 
and General Audit Observations, Prevention of Frauds, AML, Risk, Cash Management, etc.  

The Bank has also introduced the Learning Management (LMS) tool, an e-learning module which enables the employees to 
learn on-line on the varied subjects of banking and to test their knowledge through the on-line tests conducted on the 
module. The LMS tool keeps the employees updated on the recent developments in banking and keeps them abreast with 
the Bank’s guidelines and circulars on varied subjects.

The Bank also encourages its employees to continually upgrade their knowledge in different fields. During the year under 
review, 21 employees took initiative in upgrading their academic qualifications. 3 employees attained their post graduation / 
professional qualifications and as many as 18 employees completed various courses conducted by the Indian Institute of 
Bankers. 
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The Directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the commitment of the employees, particularly for the 
uninterrupted service to the customers during the Covid-19 pandemic. The Board appreciates the risk-taking efforts by the 
employees and the support extended by their family members allowing them to attend their duties religiously.

Shri Vishal Rathod joined the Bank as Chief Information Officer on December 9, 2019.

Shri Amit Jaokar joined the Bank as Chief Information Security & Digitisation Officer on December 2, 2019. 

Shri Gunakar Anwekar joined the Bank as AGM, HRD on May 12, 2020.

Shri Bhooshan Rege joined the Bank as Chief Manager – Liabilities and Ancillary Business on July 4, 2019.

Shri Mohan Guddad joined the Bank as Chief Manager, Goa Cluster Head w.e.f. June 5, 2020.

Shri Pravin Rao joined the Bank as Senior Manager, Bangalore Cluster Head w.e.f. April 2, 2019.

Shri Bhushan Patil joined the Bank as  Senior Manager – Agro-based Business on January 28, 2020. 

BRAND BUILDING

Brand building is an ongoing process in generating awareness, establishing and promoting an organisation using 
strategies and tactics. Bank continued with its brand building activities using various media of mass communication to 
reach out to maximum numbers of target audience. Promotion through Newspapers, Television commercials, Branding on 
the Bus shelters and other OOH media, display during Ganeshostav and Navratri festival was extensively undertaken. 

Bank was associated with various features and events organized by leading newspapers viz., Loksatta, Maharashtra 
Times, Lokmat, Udayvani, Vijay Karnatak, Gomantak, etc. Various ground events were organized through branches in 
Schools, Housing Societies, Industrial estates, etc. to directly connect with our target group. 

Bank is also enhancing its presence through digital marketing by Search Engine Optimisation, advertisement in Web 
series, e-news, etc. Bank has been able to generate business leads through these media.

The Bank donated  ̀ 10,00,000 to The Chief Minister’s Relief Fund to counter the spread of COVID -19 in Maharashtra. The 

employees and Directors of the Bank also donated a total of ₹ 14,53,282  towards this noble cause. 

SHRI SHETH SHANTARAM MANGESH KULKARNI MEMORIAL LECTURE

The 21st Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni Memorial lecture was organized on January 18, 2020 at Pracharya B.N. 
Vaidya Sabhagraha, IES School, Dadar. Dr. Soumya Kanti Ghosh, Group Chief Economic Advisor - SBI was the guest 
speaker who delivered a lecture on the topic “Rules Versus Discretions in Policy Making – Learning by Doing.”

The lecture was well attended. 

The Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni Memorial Lecture Series, which started in 1997, has witnessed presence of 
various eminent speakers with expertise in their fields. 

The Bank, as a mark of respect to its Founder member- Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni and to celebrate the legacy in 
the Co-operative Banking sector, shall continue to conduct the series of “Sheth Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni Memorial 
Lecture.”

DEPOSIT INSURANCE

The Bank has been regularly paying premium to Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation (DICGC) covering 

Bank’s deposits. The Bank paid a premium of  ̀  920.07 Lacs during the year.
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With a view to providing a greater measure of protection to depositors in banks, the DICGC, a wholly owned subsidiary of 

the RBI, has raised the limit of insurance cover for depositors in insured banks from the present level of  ̀  1 lac to ̀  5 lacs per 

depositor with effect from February 4, 2020. Accordingly, the Bank will have to bear an additional premium of around          

` 93 lacs based on deposit figure of current financial year. The Premium at revised rate is payable from the Financial      

year 2020-21.

GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL UNIT

For an efficient and prompt redressal of customer grievances and for effective customer service, the Bank has in place a 
Grievance Redressal Unit (GRU) headed by the Principal Nodal Officer of the Bank, presently, Shri Laxmikant Desai, 
Assistant General Manager. The GRU addresses the complaints received through various sources including Banking 
Ombudsman and resolves them promptly.

During the year under review, RBI had introduced a digitised Complaint Management System (CMS) to process complaints 
received by Ombudsman (BO) as well as Consumer Education and Protection Cells. Members of public can access the 
CMS portal at RBI’s website to lodge their complaints against any of the entities regulated by RBI (All banks, NBFCs, etc.) 
This system facilitates the regulated entities to resolve customer complaints received through CMS by providing seamless 
access to Banks' Principal Nodal Officers. The Bank now also uses this CMS portal to reply to the complaints received.

MEMBERS’ WELFARE

The Bank has been felicitating the meritorious wards of the members encouraging them by recognizing their achievements 
in academics & sports. This year, 30 students were felicitated through the Members’ welfare fund.

In all, 23 members have availed the benefits of the Members’ Welfare scheme for reimbursement of hospitalization 
expenses. 

During the year, 52 members availed the facility of reimbursement of expenses for medical check-up.

BYE-LAW AMENDMENT

The Board of Directors has proposed the following amendments to the Bye-Laws of the Bank, reasons for which are given 
in Annexure II

i)  Deletion of Bye-Law No. 5 (ix) – In terms of para 3.1 of RBI Master Circular DCBR.BPD (PCB). MC.No.4/16.20.000 
/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015 on ‘Investments by Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks’ prohibiting UCBs from 
undertaking any transactions on behalf of Portfolio Management Scheme (PMS) clients.

ii)  Amendment to Bye-Law No. 51 – In terms of para 3 of RBI Master Circular DCBR.BPD.(PCB).MC. No. 10/09.18.201 
/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015 on ‘Prudential Norms on Capital Adequacy - UCBs’ for dispensing with the monetary 
ceilings on individual share-holding.

iii)  Amendment to Bye-Law No. 52 – In terms of para 3 of RBI circular DCBR.BPD. (PCB).Cir.No. 8/16.20.000/2015-16 
dated November 19, 2015 on ‘Placement of Deposits with Other Banks by Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks 
(UCBs)’ prohibiting acceptance of deposits by scheduled UCBs from scheduled UCBs in the nature of placement of 
deposits for investment purposes.

iv)  Renumbering of existing Bye-Law No. 65 to Bye-Law No. 72.

v)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 65 – Providing for constitution of the Board of Management In terms of the RBI circular No. 
DoR (PCB).BPD.Cir.No.8/12.05.002/2019-20 dated 31st December, 2019.
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vi)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 66 – Providing for Qualification of Members of the Board of Management (BoM) in terms of 
the above referred RBI circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

vii)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 67 – Providing for Disqualification for being a Member of Board of Management (BoM) in 
terms of the above referred RBI circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

viii)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 68 – Providing for functions of Board of Management (BoM) in terms of the above referred 
RBI circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

ix)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 69 – Providing for meetings of Board of Management (BoM) in terms of the above referred 
RBI circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

x)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 70 – Providing for Tenure of Board of Management (BoM) in terms of the above referred RBI 
circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

xi)  Addition of Bye-Law No. 71 – containing provisions w.r.t. removal of member of BoM in terms of the above referred 
RBI circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

xii)  Amendment to Bye-Law No. 37 – to include additional functions of the Board of Directors (BoD) as per the above 
referred RBI Circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

xiii)  Amendment to Bye-Law No. 47 – to include the conditions prescribed for appointment of the Chief Executive Officer 
as per the above referred RBI Circular on Constitution of Board of Management (BoM).

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

I)  Ms. Alka Diwadkar resigned as a Board member with effect from June 10, 2020.

II)  Shri Nagesh Pinge resigned as a Board member with effect from June 22, 2020.

The Board accepted the resignation of both the Board members and acknowledged the contribution made by them as 
Directors of the Bank.

MANAGEMENT

I)  Shri Srinivasaraghavan S., the Bank’s Chief General Manager, was one of the awardees under the “CFO Power List 
2019” awarded by Core Media Group on November 22, 2019, under the “Treasury Management ICON.”

 He was also awarded the ‘Excellence in Finance Leaders Award’ in recognition of his contribution to the Finance 
Industry, presented at FINEXT AWARDS & CONFERENCE at Dubai on February 27, 2020.

II)  Shri Amit Jaokar, the Bank’s Chief Information Security & Digitisation Officer received the following awards:

i)  TOP 100 CISO in India:

 "TOP 100 CISO Award" by India's Largest Cyber Security Community CISO Platform, felicited by honorable Shri 
Nabankur Sen, Ex. CISO Bandhan Bank, Axis Bank, SBI. The Chief Guest of the program was Shri Nandan Nilekani, 
Co-founder of Infosys.

ii)  Digital Leader of the Year:

 “Digital Leader of the Year” Award by UBS Forums. This is a first of its kind event in India to Honour Top 10 CDOs from 
key industry sectors; who have brought about a sea change in the way technology is leveraged in their businesses 
throughout their careers.

iii)  BFSI Leadership Award:

 'BFSI Leadership Award’ by Elets Technomedia for exemplary leadership in the BFSI domain all-round the career in 
space of Innovation and Digital transformation. 
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III)  Shri Chintamani Nadkarni, Managing Director of the Bank opted for early retirement w.e.f. September 1, 2020.  In the 
interim period, Shri Srinivasaraghavan S., CFO (Chief General Manager) was given the charge of the Managing 
Director in addition to the role presently handled by him.

OBITUARY

The Board of Directors express their profound grief at the sad demise of Shri Shrikant Johri, Legal Consultant, and Shri 
Hrishikesh Jagnade and Ms. Asmita Prabhu, staff members of the Bank.

The Board pays homage to the departed souls of shareholders who have passed away during the year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Bank expresses deep gratitude to our members, customers, staff members, well wishers, patrons and various 
institutions, officials and dignitaries for their co-operation and support, particularly during the Covid-pandemic, guidance 
and advice from time to time. To mention specially,

• Chief General Managers, General Managers and other Officials of  Reserve Bank of India

• Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, New Delhi

• Commissioner of Co-operation of Maharashtra State, Divisional Jt.   Registrar & other officials of Co-op. Department 
at Pune & Mumbai

• President of Co-op. Bank's Employees Union

• M/s. A. P. Sanzgiri & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors

• Internal Auditors, Concurrent Auditors and Stock Auditors

• College of Agricultural Banking, Pune 

• National Institute of Bank Management, Pune

• Indian Banks' Association, Mumbai

• National Federation of Urban Banks & Credit Societies Ltd., New Delhi

• Maharashtra State Co-op. Banks' Federation

• Maharashtra State Co-op. Banks' Association, Mumbai

• Brihan Mumbai Co-op. Banks' Association, Mumbai

• Legal Advisors, Consulting Architects, Engineers and Contractors

• Press, T.V. and other Media, Artists and Printers

• All those inadvertently missed, who helped us directly or indirectly.

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: July 31, 2020

KISHORE KULKARNI

CHAIRMAN

For and on behalf of the Board,
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To,

The Members,

NKGSB Co-op. Bank Ltd.,

Mumbai.

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

1.  We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of NKGSB Co-Op. Bank Ltd. (hereinafter referred to 
 s st tas ‘the Bank’) as at 31 March 2020, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2020, the statement of 

Profit and Loss Account, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. The returns of Head Office and it’s departments audited by 

us and returns of all 109 branches certified by the Concurrent Auditors/Internal Auditors are consolidated in these 

Financial Statements. Of the 109 branches, all are under monthly/quarterly Concurrent Audit. No branches have 

been newly opened in the current financial year 2019-2020. As informed by the management, the Bank has not 

received any specific guidelines from the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies with respect to selection of 

branches to be covered under audit. Key operations of the Bank are automated. With the key applications largely 

integrated to the core banking systems it does not require it's branches to submit any financial returns. Accordingly, 

our audit is carried out centrally at the Head Office and Central Processing Units, based on the necessary records 

and data required for the purposes of the audit being made available to us and further the matter of percentages of 

advances, deposits, interest income and of interest expenses is not applicable to the Bank.

2.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts 

read together with the Notes, give the information required thereon by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as 

Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and rules made thereunder, in the manner so required, for the Urban 

Co-operative Banks, guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India and the Central Registrar of Co-operative 

Societies, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India:
st a.  In the case of the Balance Sheet, of state of affairs of the Bank as at 31  March 2020;

 b.  In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

 c.  In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in 

accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provision of the Act and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4.  We draw attention to Note 36 of Schedule 16 to the Financial Statements which describes the extent to which the 

high uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic will have an impact on the Bank’s future financial 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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performance.

 Our opinion on the financial results for the current year is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

5.  The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, and 

provisions of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949, the circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India 

and the guidelines issued by the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, the Multi State Co-operative 

Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 from time to time. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Acts for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 

the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

6.   Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 •  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 •  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

 •  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the bank to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 •  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
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disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with 

governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters 

communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

7.  In view of the Government imposed lockdown and travel restrictions as a result of continuous spreading of COVID-

19 across India, we were unable to physically visit some branches and certain aspects of the year-end statutory 

audit have been carried out based on remote access of certain data which has been represented, for our audit 

purposes, as correct, complete, reliable and directly generated by the accounting system of the bank without any 

manual modifications. 

 Under the aforesaid circumstances, our audit has duly considered the advisory on “Specific Considerations while 

conducting Distance Audit / Remote Audit / Online Audit of Bank under current Covid-19 situation” issued by the 

Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of ICAI. We, have also relied on alternative audit procedures as per the 

SAs to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Financial Statements, as a whole, are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

8. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively of the 

Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the Multi 

State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002.

9.  As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

 a.  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found to be satisfactory;

 b.  In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been 

received from the branches/offices;

 c.  As required by Section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, we further report that the transactions of the 

Bank which came to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

 d.  The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report, are in the agreement with the 

books of account and the returns;

 e.  The reports on the accounts of the branches/offices certified by the branch auditors have been forwarded to 

us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this Report;

 f.  The accounting standards adopted by the Bank are consistent with those laid down by accounting principles 

generally accepted in India so far as applicable to Banks;
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 g.  In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed any material 

impropriety or irregularity in the expenditure or in the realization of money due to the Bank.

10. As required by the Rule 27 (3) of the Multi–State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002, we report on the m atters 

specified in clauses (a) to (f) of the said Rule to the extent applicable to the Bank.

 a.  During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across transactions which appear to be contrary 

to the provisions of the Act, the Rules or the Bye-Laws of the Bank.

 b.  During the course of our audit, we have not come across material and significant transactions which appear 

to be contrary to the guidelines issued by RBI. Since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received 

subsidy from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development, our comments regarding transactions 

contrary to the guidelines issued by the said Bank are not called for.

 c.  Following monies due to the Bank appear to be doubtful of recovery against which a provision of Rs.8,312.54 

Lacs is made in the accounts. Advances categorized as doubtful and loss assets as per Prudential Norms are 

considered as doubtful of recovery:-

 d. As per the information provided to us and to the best of our knowledge, following credit facilities have been 

sanctioned by the Bank to the members of the Board or their relatives:

 e. We have generally not come across any violations of guidelines, instructions etc. issued by the RBI. Since the 

Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural 

Development, our comments regarding violations of guidelines issued by the said Bank are not called for.

 f. To the best of our knowledge, no other matters have been specified by the Central Registrar, which require 

reporting under this Rule.

For and on behalf of

A.P. Sanzgiri & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.:116293W

Abhijit P. Sanzgiri

Partner 

Membership No.: 43230

Place: Mumbai
stDate: 31  July, 2020

UDIN : 20043230AAAAB01557

Category Outstanding on 31.03.2020

  (  In Lacs)`

Doubtful Assets 14,422.38

Loss Assets 954.14

Particulars Amount  Security Value  Overdues if any 

  outstanding  if any (  In Lacs) `

  (  In Lacs) (  In Lacs)` `

Fund Based Nil Nil Nil

Non Fund Based Nil Nil Nil
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As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20

Balance Sheet

     CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

I. SHARE CAPITAL 1 10,040 9,817

    

II. RESERVE FUND AND  OTHER RESERVES  2 68,082 67,777

    

III. PRINCIPAL/SUBSIDIARY STATE PARTNERSHIP FUND ACCOUNTS  - -
 

IV. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 3 7,87,625 7,60,088

    

V. BORROWINGS  4 25,592 15,970 

    

   

VI. BILLS FOR COLLECTION BEING BILLS RECEIVABLE  7,150 9,574

  (As per Contra)   

    

    

VII. OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE ON LOANS AND ADVANCES  13,072 10,102

 (As per Contra)   

    

VIII. INTEREST PAYABLE  1,394 1,539

    

IX. OTHER LIABILITIES 5 3,440 8,198

    

X. SETTLEMENT CREDIT ACCOUNT (As per contra)  99 100 

 (Refer Schedule 16, Note no. 4)   

    
XI. PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT  2 1 

    
 GRAND  TOTAL  9,16,496 8,83,166

    

 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 14  30,617 29,595  

   

 Significant Accounting Policies 15  

 Notes to Accounts 16

 Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No.: 116293W
sd/-

ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI
PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

stMumbai, 31  July, 2020
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Schedule



As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20

st
as at 31  March, 2020

I. CASH  6 37,899 35,543
    
II. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 7 23,322 18,109 
    
III. INVESTMENTS OUT OF THE PRINCIPAL/SUB. STATE PARTNERSHIP FUND - -

IV. MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE (LAF, REVERSE REPO & TREPS) 8 80,785 33,489 
    

V. INVESTMENTS 9 2,20,207 2,08,561
    
VI. ADVANCES 10 4,90,352 5,25,052
    
VII. BILLS RECEIVABLE BEING BILLS FOR COLLECTION  7,150 9,574
 (As per Contra)   
    

VIII. INTEREST RECEIVABLE   
 a) On Investments & Earmarked Funds 11 4,295 3,921 
 b) On Staff Loans  1,081 927

 c) On Loans and Advances (As per Contra)  13,072 10,102
    

IX. FIXED ASSETS 12 26,183 27,301

X. OTHER ASSETS 13 10,545 9,063

XI. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET) (Refer Schedule 16, Note no. 18)  1,506 1,424
    
XII. SETTLEMENT DEBIT ACCOUNT (As per contra)  99 100 
 (Refer Schedule 16, Note no. 4)   

   
 GRAND  TOTAL  9,16,496 8,83,166

PROPERTY AND ASSETS Schedule

KISHORE KULKARNI
Chairman   
SUNIL GAITONDE  
Vice - Chairman  
CHINTAMANI NADKARNI
Managing Director   
SRINIVASARAGHAVAN S.  
Chief General Manager  
SAMIR REGE
Asst. General Manager (Finance)   

LAXMIKANT PRABHU 
Director 
SUJATA RANGNEKAR 
Director
 

stMumbai, 31  July, 2020

NAGESH FOVKAR
Director
SHREEDHAR KAMAT
Director
RAMESH KASBEKAR
Director
KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR
Director

33

(` in Lacs)



Profit and Loss Account

EXPENDITURE

Interest on Deposits 52,489 47,265
Interest on Borrowings 1,522 1,481 

Staff Salaries, Allowances and Benefits 8,669  8,143 

Rent, Rates, Taxes, Service Charges, Insurance and Electricity 2,789  2,623

Legal and Professional Charges 196  224 

Postage, Telegrams and Telephone Charges 295  243
Travelling, Lodging and Conveyance 65  73

Audit Fees 125  118
Repairs and Maintenance 861  828
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 1,420  1,512

Depreciation on Shifting of Securities -  15

Amortisation on HTM Securities 540  491 

Printing and Stationery  79 89

Advertisement 239  214

Bad Debts Written Off 3,544  3,799

Amortisation of Software 212  798

Sundry Expenses                          1,769  1,910 
OPERATING PROFIT (c/f) 4,767  9,253

  79,581  79,079
Provisions and Contingencies:  
A) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  3,905 3,137
B) Contingent Reserve against Standard Assets -  -

C) Provision on Moratorium Advances 46  -

D) Provision for Diminution in fair value of asset - 2

E) Interest Transferred to Leave Encashment Fund  97 89

F) Provision for IDR 58  13
G) Provision for Election Fund 8  8

Profit Before Tax (c/f)  653 6,004

  4,767  9,253
Provision for Taxes:  

Income Tax 427  1,678

Deferred Tax  (81)  300

Net Profit for the year 307  4,026

Total  653  6,004

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No.: 116293W
sd/-

ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI
PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

stMumbai, 31  July, 2020
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Year Ended
31-Mar-19

Year Ended
31-Mar-20



st
for the year ended 31  March, 2020

 Interest and Discount   

 a) Interest on Advances   50,638 54,919 

 b) Income from Investments  17,551  14,195 

 c) Interest on Deposits with Banks   1,378 1,064

  
 Commission, Exchange & Brokerage   3,094 3,045

 Bad Debts Provision Reversed   3,544 3,799

 Bad Debts of Earlier year Written off now recovered   42 4

 Profit on Sale of Investments (including Mutual Funds)  2,925  1,572
 Profit on Forex Transactions   93 123 

 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets   8 50
 Rent on Safe Deposit Lockers   274 250

 Miscellaneous Income  34  58

   

  

   79,581 79,079

  

OPERATING PROFIT (b/f)  4,767 9,253

  

  

   

  

  

  

   4,767 9,253

  

 Profit Before Tax (b/f) 653 6,004 
  

  

 Total   653 6,004

INCOME
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(` in Lacs)

Year Ended
31-Mar-19

Year Ended
31-Mar-20

KISHORE KULKARNI
Chairman   
SUNIL GAITONDE  
Vice - Chairman  
CHINTAMANI NADKARNI
Managing Director   
SRINIVASARAGHAVAN S.  
Chief General Manager  
SAMIR REGE
Asst. General Manager (Finance)   

LAXMIKANT PRABHU 
Director 
SUJATA RANGNEKAR 
Director
 

stMumbai, 31  July, 2020

NAGESH FOVKAR
Director
SHREEDHAR KAMAT
Director
RAMESH KASBEKAR
Director
KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR
Director



Year Ended
31-Mar-19

Year Ended
31-Mar-20

Profit and Loss Appropriation Account

 Appropriations  subject to Approval in AGM  

   
A) Statutory Appropriations :-  

   
1 Statutory Reserve Fund (25% of Net Profit)  77 1,006 

2 Contingency Reserve Fund (10% of Net Profit)  31  403
3 Education Fund ( 1 % of Net Profit) 4  40 

   
B) Other Appropriations :-  

   
1 Building Fund -  166
2 Bad & Doubtful Debts Fund 707  1,200
3 Reserve for Donations 2  5 
4 Investment Fluctuation Reserve -  107   

5 Dividend to be appropriated as NIL in C.Y. (P.Y. was provided @10% p.a.) -  850
 (pro-rata) on Equity Shares 
6 Dividend to be appropriated as NIL in C.Y. (P.Y. was provided @8.5% p.a.) -  125
 (pro-rata) on Preference Shares
7 Ex-Gratia to Staff  -  835 
8 Staff Welfare  fund 54  90
9 Members' Welfare Fund 20  20

10 Special Reserve U/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 70  203
   

  965  5,050

   
 PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET  2 1

   

 TOTAL 967  5,051

EXPENDITURE

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No.: 116293W

sd/-
ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI

PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

stMumbai, 31  July, 2020
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Year Ended
31-Mar-19

Year Ended
31-Mar-20

st
for the year ended 31  March, 2020

INCOME

Profit of last year b/f  1   1
Net Profit for the year  307 4,026
  

Transfer from Revaluation Reserve  569 569 

Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve written back  - 400  

  
Excess Appropriation of previous year written back:-  
a) Ex-gratia  69 54 
b) Dividend  21 1

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   
  
TOTAL  967 5,051

(` in Lacs)
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KISHORE KULKARNI
Chairman   
SUNIL GAITONDE  
Vice - Chairman  
CHINTAMANI NADKARNI
Managing Director   
SRINIVASARAGHAVAN S.  
Chief General Manager  
SAMIR REGE
Asst. General Manager (Finance) 

LAXMIKANT PRABHU 
Director 
SUJATA RANGNEKAR 
Director
 

st Mumbai, 31 July, 2020

NAGESH FOVKAR
Director
SHREEDHAR KAMAT
Director
RAMESH KASBEKAR
Director
KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR
Director



As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20

Schedules

 
Schedule - 1   

 Share Capital   
    
 Authorised Share  Capital  20,000 20,000
  20,00,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each     

 I  Issued Subscribed and Paid up Equity Capital    
  8,67,63,371 shares of Rs. 10/- each   
  (P.Y. 8,46,46,802 shares) of which :-   
  Individuals 6,658 6,513
  Co-op Institutions - -
  Others 2,018 1,952

  TOTAL 8,676 8,465

 II Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) Capital   
  (5,00,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10 each Sanctioned)   
  Issued Subscribed and Paid up Preference Share Capital    
  1,36,40,000 shares of Rs 10/- each (P. Y. 1,35,21,000  shares) 1,364 1,352 
 
  TOTAL CAPITAL (I+II) 10,040 9,817
    
 Schedule - 2   
 RESERVE FUND AND  OTHER RESERVES    
    
 I Reserves as per Multi-State Co-op. Soc. Act     

  (i) Statutory Reserve Fund  14,097 13,996

  (ii) Contingency Reserve Fund  5,107 5,076
  (iii) Building Fund 8,702 8,702
  (iv) Donation Fund 15 13

 II Reserves as per RBI guidelines    
  (i) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 1,233 1,233
  (ii) Contingent Reserve against Standard Assets  2,189 2,189
  (iii) Provision on Moratorium Advances 46 -

  (iv) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve 9,405 9,043

  (v) Provision  for Restructured Advances  50 50

  (vi) General Reserve 35 35

 III Other Funds as per Bye-Laws    

  (i) Election Fund 31 23

  (ii) Members' Welfare Fund  254 238

 IV Others      
  (i) Special Reserve U/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 2,511 2,441
  (ii) Capital Reserve 68 68
  (iii) Revaluation Reserve 17,907 18,475
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(` in Lacs)



Schedules

  (iv) Deferred Tax Reserve 292 292

  (v) Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund 2,323 2,178

  (vi) ARC Reserve Account 2,047 2,047
    

 V Funds for the benefit of staff   
   (i) Staff Welfare Fund  379 429

   (ii) Staff Leave Encashment Fund  1,391 1,249
    

  TOTAL RESERVES (I+II+III+IV+V) 68,082 67,777

    

 Schedule - 3   
 Deposits    
    
 I Term Deposits   
  (i) Individuals & Others 5,25,321 5,03,280
  (ii) Societies 89,734 81,165
     

 II Saving Deposits   

  (i) Individuals & Others 1,34,375 1,33,054
  (ii) Societies 8,230 6,946
     
 III Current Deposits   
  (i) Individuals & Others 28,116 32,861

  (ii) Societies 694 652
     
 IV Matured Deposits 1,155 2,130
    

  Total ( I+II+III+IV) 7,87,625 7,60,088

  (Includes amount of Rs. 8,715 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 11,952 Lacs)
  collateralised towards LCs / Guarantees. Also an amount of
  Rs. 58,536 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.49,419 Lacs) is lien marked against
  overdraft / loan against FDs.)   

    
 Schedule-4   
 Borrowings    
    
 I Long Term Subordinated Deposits   
  Series I    
  Tenure of 5 years @ 10.00% p.a.  49 2,283

  Tenure of 7 years @ 10.25% p.a.  2,717 2,717
    

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20

39

(` in Lacs)



Schedules

 II Long Term Subordinated Deposits   
  Series II   
  Tenure of 5 years @ 9.00% p.a.  1,392 1,392

  Tenure of 7 years @ 9.25% p.a.  4,178 4,178 

 III Long Term Subordinated Deposits
  Series III
  Tenure of 5 years @ 8.50% p.a.  2,854 2,854

  Tenure of 7 years @ 8.75% p.a.  2,546 2,546

 IV Long Term Subordinated Deposits
  Series IV
  Tenure of 5 years @8.75% p.a. 1,556 -

 V REPO 10,300 -
    

  Total (I+II+III+IV+V) 25,592 15,970
    

 Schedule-5   

 Other Liabilities   

   (i) Payorder Issued / Draft Payable  590 3,008

   (ii) Proposed Dividend (Equity  + PNCPS)  - 975

   (iii) Ex-gratia for Staff  - 835
   (iv) T.D.S. on F.D.R. Interest  522 217
   (v) Interest received in Advance on Bill Discounting  360 791

   (vi) Unclaimed Dividend  174 128
   (vii) Sundry Deposits  249 664

   (viii) Others  1,545 1,580
    

  Total ( i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 3,440 8,198

    
 Schedule -6   
 Cash   
  (i) Cash in Hand 6,913 2,908

  (ii) Balances with Reserve Bank of India 30,944 32,624

  (iii) Balances with State Bank of India, State Co-operative Banks  & 42 11
   District Co-operative Banks  
    
  Total (i+ii+iii) 37,899 35,543

    

 Schedule -7   
 Balances with other Banks   
  I Current Deposits with  Banks 1,573 3,106 

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20
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Schedules

  II Fixed Deposits with Banks :-   

  (a) Reserve Fund Investment 2,650 2,750
  (b) Investment against Earmarked Funds  639 701
  (c) Other Fixed Deposit Receipts 18,460 11,552

   Total (a+b+c) 21,749 15,003

   (Other Fixed Deposit Receipts includes Rs.2,260.80 Lacs placed
    with other Banks as margin for Credit Line (P.Y. Rs.1,014.85 Lacs))   

    
  Total (I+II) 23,322 18,109  
 
Schedule-8   

 MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE (LAF, REVERSE REPO & TREPS)   
  (i) Money at Call & Short Notice  -    -

  (ii) Reverse REPO 68,800 18,500   
  (iii) TREPS 11,985 14,989  
    
  Total (i+ii+iii) 80,785 33,489
 
Schedule-9   
Investments   
  (i)  Government Securities 1,87,321 1,80,712
  (ii)  Government Securities (earmarked for Reserve Fund Investment) 16,445 15,945
  (iii)  Other Approved Securities - -
         Other Trustee Securities approved for SLR (IDBI Bonds)   
  (iv)  Shares in Co-op. Institutions - -
   (Rs. 23,000/- P.Y. Rs.23,000/-)   
  (v)  P.S.U. Bonds & Bonds of all India Financial Institututions - -
  (vi)  Bonds & NCDs 7,763 2,000
  (vii) Other Investments 25 25
  (viii) Security Receipts (ARC) 8,653 9,879
   

  Total (i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 2,20,207 2,08,561
       
 Schedule-10   
 Advances
 I Short Term Loans, Cash Credit, Bills Discounted and Purchased 1,84,752 1,92,017
  Of which secured against:   
  (i)  Govt. and Other Approved Securities 78 91
  (ii) Other Tangible Securities  1,84,458 1,91,443
  (iii)  Unsecured - Personal /Surety Loans 216 483
   (Amount due from individuals - Rs. 22,471.86 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.19,304.26 Lacs),
   amount overdue Rs. 31,971.54 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 20,309.27 Lacs),
   considered  Bad & Doubtful of recovery Rs.  4,264.87 Lacs
   (P.Y. Rs.5,265.60 Lacs ) fully provided as per RBI Norms )   
    

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20
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Schedules

 II Medium Term Loans :  7,492 27,394
  Of which secured against:   
  (i)  Govt. and Other Approved Securities - 1
  (ii)  Other Tangible Securities  7,288 26,614
  (iii)  Unsecured - Personal /Surety Loans 204 779
   (Amount due from individuals - Rs. 1,198.96 Lacs (P.Y. 11,784.39 Lacs),
   amount overdue Rs. 724.48 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 2,033.88 Lacs),
   considered  Bad & Doubtful of recovery Rs. 675.50  Lacs
   (P.Y. Rs. 911.04 Lacs ) fully provided as per RBI Norms )   
    
 III Long Term Loans : 2,98,108 3,05,641
  Of which secured against:   
  (i)  Govt. and Other Approved Securities - 1,354
  (ii)  Other Tangible Securities  2,93,370 3,01,051
  (iii)  Unsecured - Personal /Surety Loans 4,738 3,236
   (Amount due from individuals - Rs.2,00,289.81 Lacs
   (P.Y. Rs.1,97,047.29 Lacs) , amount overdue Rs.11,494.73 Lacs
   (P.Y. Rs.9,446.84 Lacs) , considered  Bad & Doubtful of recovery
   Rs. 10,436.15 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.9,578.74  Lacs )
   fully provided as per RBI Norms )   
    
  Total (I+II+III) 4,90,352 5,25,052
        
 Schedule-11   

 Interest Receivable   

  (i) On Investments 4,275 3,908
  (ii) On Investments against Earmarked Funds 20 13
    

  Total (i+ii) 4,295 3,921
    
 Schedule-12   
 Fixed Assets   
 I Premises (Including Land)   

  Opening Balance as on April, 1 32,144 32,183
  Add  :  Additions during the year (Includes Leasehold Improvements) 36 65
  Less : Sales during the year - (104)
    32,180 32,144
   

  Less : Depreciation upto last year 6,577 5,730
                         Depreciation for the current year 829 857
                         Depreciation  on assets  sold 0 (10)

    7,406 6,577
    

  Sub-Total (I) 24,774 25,567
    

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20
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 II Furniture and Fixtures   

  Original Cost  as on April, 1 3,274 3,205
  Add  :  Additions during the year 7 74

   Less : Sales during the year (13) (5)
    3,268 3,274
    
   Less : Depreciation upto last year 2,154 1,884

                          Depreciation for the current year 254 275
                          Depreciation  on assets  sold (13) (5)
    2,395 2,154
    

  Sub-Total (II) 873 1,120   

 III Other Fixed Assets   
  Original Cost  as on April, 1 3,985 3,894
  Add  : Additions during the year 273 256
  Less : Sales during the year (133) (165)
    4,125 3,985
    

  Less : Depreciation upto last year 3,371 3,149
                         Depreciation for the current year 337 381
                         Depreciation  on assets  sold (119) (159)
    3,589 3,371 

  Sub-Total (III) 536 614
    
  Total Fixed Assets (I+II+III) 26,183 27,301 
 
Schedule-13   
 Other Assets      
 (i) Premium paid on Investment (Net of Amortisation) 4,021 3,510
 (ii)  Earmarked fund against Staff Leave Encashment Fund 1,391 1,087
 (iii)  Lease & Security Deposits 889 851
 (iv) Intangible Assets (Software) 592 694
 (v)  CCIL & CBLO Segment Cash Margins  215 215
 (vi)  Advance Income Tax (Net) 2,419 1,521
 (vii)  Prepaid Expenses 61 87
 (viii) Others 957 1,098
    
Total  (i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 10,545 9,063
   

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20
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As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-20

(` in Lacs)

Schedule -14   
Contingent Liabilities   
 (i)  Forward Contracts Purchase 609 1,092
 (ii)  Forward Contract Sale 482 1,693
 (iii)  Guarantees * 19,841 19,184
 (iv)  Letter of Credit ** 6,264 5,880
 (v)  DEAF Account 1,159 1,023
 (vi)  Income Tax Demand 2,033 664
 (vii)  Service Tax Demand 38 38
 (viii)  Others 191 21
 Total  (i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii+viii) 30,617 29,595
   
 * These amounts are collaterised by Fixed Deposits, Counter Guarantees and
 Secured Charges of Rs.8,714.79  Lacs (P.Y. Rs.11,952.22 Lacs)   
   
 ** These amounts includes Expired LCs of Rs. 363.59 Lacs  (P.Y. Rs.155.88  Lacs)/
 Guarantees of  Rs.883.89 Lacs, (P.Y. 2,670.76 Lacs) which have not been
 cancelled being Original LCs / Govt Guarantees / BGs not being received back.
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ITEMS  AS ON MARCH 31, 2020

No. of Branches (including Head Office)  110

Membership 

No of Regular Members  56,601

No of Nominal Members  11,306

Paid up Share Capital ` 100.40

Total Reserves and Funds ` 781.22

Deposits : 

Current  ` 299.66

Savings ` 1,426.05

Term  ` 6,150.54

Total  ` 7,876.25

Advances: 

Secured ` 4,851.95

Unsecured ` 51.57

Total  ` 4,903.52

Total % of Priority Sector  44.17%

Total % of Weaker Section  9.45%

Overdues ` 441.91

Overdue Percentage  9.01%

Borrowings ` 255.92

Investments ` 3,227.42

Audit Classification  B

Profit for the year ` 3.07

Working Capital ` 8,961.76

Total Staff  1134

(` in Cr.)

ANNEXURE 'I'

NAME OF BANK :  NKGSB CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD.

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS : 'LAXMI SADAN', 361, V. P. ROAD, GIRGAUM,
MUMBAI 400 004.

DATE OF REGISTRATION  : SEPTEMBER 26, 1917

NO. & DATE OF RBI LICENSE  : UBD MH 493 P, DT. JULY 26, 1986

AREA OF OPERATION : STATES OF MAHARASHTRA, KARNATAKA, GUJARAT, 
GOA, MADHYA PRADESH AND UNION TERRITORY OF 
DAMAN, DIU, DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI.



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

    

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account    307     4,026 

Add: Previous year excess provision written back    659     1,024 

Add: Opening balance as per Profit & Loss Account    1     1 

  

Profit Available for Appropriations    967     5,051 

    

Less : Appropriations    965     5,050 

    

Net Profit as per Balance Sheet    2     1 

    

Add:    

Depreciation On Assets   852     943  

Deferred Tax   (81)    301  

Current Tax   427     1,678  

Bad Debts Written Off   3,544     3,799  

Premium on Securities Amortised   540     491  

Amortisation of Software    212  5,494   798  8,010

   

Add:    

Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Assets   (8)   (8)   (50)   (50)

    

Less :    

BDDR written back   (3,544)   (3,544)   (3,799)   (3,799)

    

Adjustments for:    

(Increase )/ Decrease in Investments   (11,146)    (46,494) 

(Increase )/ Decrease in Other  Investments   (7,772)    (14,164) 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances   34,700     6,078  

(Increase )/ Decrease in Interest receivable and OIR   (3,499)    4,388  

(Increase )/ Decrease in Other Assets   (2,552)    (3,754) 

Increase/( Decrease )in Funds   848     3,214  

Increase/( Decrease )in Deposits   27,537     65,558  

Increase/ (Decrease) in Interest Payable   (145)    (447) 

Increase /( Decrease) in Other Liabilities   (819)   37,152    (3,426)   10,953 

    

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A)    39,096     15,115 

stCash Flow For The Year Ended 31  March, 2020

2018-192019-20Particulars
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stCash Flow For The Year Ended 31  March, 2020

2018-192019-20Particulars

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Regn. No.: 116293W
sd/-
ABHIJIT P. SANZGIRI
PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO.: 43230)

st Mumbai, 31 July, 2020

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

   

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (315)   (395) 

Payment for Software  (110)   (109) 

Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets  22    86  

    

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities (B)   (403)   (418)

    

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

    

Increase in Equity Share Capital  198    (36) 

Increase in Preference Share Capital  (12)   95  

Increase in Borrowings (including Repo)  9,621    -    

Dividend Paid  (906)   (871) 

    

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C)   8,901    (812)

    

Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  47,594  13,885

    

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year   73,270    59,385 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year   1,20,864    73,270 

    47,594    13,885 

    

Cash & Cash equivalents    

Cash in hand & Balances with Notified Banks   37,900    35,543 

Balances with Other Banks   2,178    4,237 

Money at Call, Short Notice (LAF Reverse REPO & TREPS)    80,786    33,489 

    1,20,864    73,270 
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KISHORE KULKARNI
Chairman   
SUNIL GAITONDE  
Vice - Chairman  
CHINTAMANI NADKARNI
Managing Director   
SRINIVASARAGHAVAN S.  
Chief General Manager  
SAMIR REGE
Asst. General Manager (Finance)   

LAXMIKANT PRABHU 
Director 
SUJATA RANGNEKAR 
Director
 

st Mumbai, 31 July, 2020

NAGESH FOVKAR
Director
SHREEDHAR KAMAT
Director
RAMESH KASBEKAR
Director
KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR
Director



Schedule 15:-
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: -

1)  ACCOUNTING CONVENTION:
 The Financial Statements are drawn up keeping in mind the historical cost and going concern concept and in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices prevailing in the Co-operative Banks in 
India unless otherwise stated.

2)  MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE:
 Amount invested in Tri-party Repo (Dealing) System (TREPS) / 
 Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) / CALL and Reverse Repo are disclosed under the head ‘Money at Call and Short 

Notice’. 

3)  INVESTMENTS :
 For presentation in the Balance Sheet, Investments are classified under the following heads as required under RBI 

guidelines – Government Securities, Bonds / NCDs, Shares in Co-operative Institutions/Other Institutions, Security 
Receipts (ARC), Mutual Funds  and Other Investments. 

 3.1 Classification
  In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank classifies its investment portfolio into the following three 

categories:
  i)  ‘Held to Maturity’ – Securities acquired by the Bank with the intention to hold till maturity. 
 ii)  ‘Held for Trading’ – Securities acquired by the Bank with the intention to trade.
 iii)  ‘Available for Sale’ – Securities which do not fall within the above two categories are classified as ‘Available for 

Sale’.

 3.2  Valuation and Accounting of Investments 
 a)  Investments in HTM category are valued at acquisition cost unless it is more than the face value in which case 

the premium (if any) paid on the investments under this category is shown under “Other Assets” and is 
amortised over the period remaining to maturity. For any security acquired at discount to the face value, the 
discount earned on maturity/sale is recognized only at the time of redemption/sale.

 b)  Investments under AFS and HFT categories are valued scrip-wise at lower of Book Value and Market Value and 
depreciation/appreciation is aggregated for each classification. Net depreciation, if any, is provided for, while 
net appreciation, if any, is ignored. Net Depreciation if any, for the year under these categories is charged to the 
Profit and Loss Account and shown under Other Liabilities as “Contingent Provisions against Depreciation in 
Investment”. 

 c)  Treasury Bills under all categories/classifications are valued at carrying cost.
 d)  Units of Mutual Fund are valued at lower of Cost or Net Asset Value. 
 e)  Shares of Co-operative Institutions/Other Institutions are valued at cost unless there is a diminution in the value 

thereof in which case the diminution is fully provided for.
 f)  Market Value of Debt Securities, Debentures & Bonds are determined in terms of Yield To Maturity (YTM)  

method indicated by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).
 g)  Profit on redemption of Investments under “HTM” category is included in profit on sale of Investments and the 

said amount is transferred to Investment Fluctuation Reserve by way of appropriation.
 h)  Bank follows the settlement date method of accounting for Government of India and State Government 

securities in accordance with RBI guidelines.
 i)  Broken period Interest, Brokerage, Commission paid if any, in respect of investments purchased is treated as 

an item of expenditure under the Profit and Loss Account.
 j)  Investments in Security Receipts (SR) initially issued by Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs) are valued 

at cost till expiry of 6 months from acquisition date. Subsequently, these will be valued at NAV declared by the 
ARCs from time to time but not later than 6 months from the Balance Sheet Date. 

  Depreciation if any, arising from the valuation thereon will be recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 
Appreciation, if any will be ignored.
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 k)  Accounting for Repo/Reverse Repo transactions [Including transactions under the Liquidity 
Adjustment Facility (LAF) with the RBI].

  The securities sold and purchased under Repo/Reverse Repo are accounted as Collateralized Borrowings 
and Lending transactions. Securities are transferred as in the case of normal outright sale/purchase 
transactions and such movements of securities are reflected using Repo/Reverse Repo Accounts and contra 
entries. The above entries are reversed on the maturity date. 

 • Costs and revenue are accounted as interest expenditure/income, as the case may be. 
 • Balance in REPO account is classified under Borrowing and balance in REVERSE REPO account is classified 

under Money at Call & Short Notice.
 • The accounting and disclosure of LAF is in accordance with the norms stipulated by RBI vide its Circular No. 

thFMRD.DIRD. 10/14.03.002/2015-16 dated 19  May, 2016 and FMOD.MAOG. No.116/01.01.001/2016-17 
thdated 10  November, 2016.

3.3  Transfer between categories 
 Reclassification of investments from one category to another, is done in accordance with RBI guidelines and any 

such transfer is accounted for at the acquisition cost/book value/market value, whichever is lower, as at the date of 
transfer. Depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully provided for.

4)    ADVANCES:
 a)  The classification of Advances into Standard, Sub Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets as well as provisioning 

on Standard Advances, Restructured Advances and Non  Performing Advances is arrived at in accordance 
with the Income Recognition, Assets Classification and Provisioning Norms prescribed by the RBI for Primary 
UCBs. 

 b)  The Bank also makes provision for diminution in fair value of Restructured Advances as per norms issued by 
RBI.

 c)  Advances against security of Bank’s own Fixed Deposits, National Saving Certificates, Life Insurance 
Corporation Policies, Indira Vikas Patra, Kisan Vikas Patra are considered as Performing Assets in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI.

 d)  In arriving at the provisioning, for determining the value of securities, the value as per the latest valuation 
reports, wherever obtained, of the assets mortgaged is considered. For valuations over 3 years, the ready 
reckoner value rate increase/decrease over the corresponding period of previous valuation is considered. In 
case of stock the value as per latest stock statement submitted by the borrowers and in case of fixed assets, the 
depreciated value of the assets as per latest  Audited Financials  is considered.

 e)  Amount recovered against debts write off in earlier years are recognised in Profit and Loss account.

5)  FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION:
 a)  Fixed Assets, other than those that have been revalued, are carried at historical cost less depreciation 

accumulated thereon. Cost includes incidental stamp duty, registration charges and civil work in case of 
ownership premises, and in case of other fixed assets, amounts incurred to put the asset in a working condition.

 b)  Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset at the following rates:
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Assets Rate of Depreciation

Land and Building (Including Tenancy Rights) 2.50% 480 months

Furniture and Fixture  10.00% 120 months

Office Machinery (including Air Conditioner)  15.00% 80 months

Fire Extinguisher, Glow Sign Board & Vehicles  20.00% 60 months

Computer Hardware & Software and UPS/ Batteries 33.33% 36 months

(*Finacle Software is depreciated over its estimated

useful life (Currently 84 months)) 

Leasehold Improvements  E      qually over the

               primary period of lease

Period of Depreciation



 c) Assets purchased during the year are depreciated from the completed month of it being put to use.
 d) Assets disposed off during the year are depreciated up to the quarter before the date of disposal. 
 e) Books are capitalised and depreciated to Re1/- per book in the year of purchase.
 f) Depreciation on the revalued portion of assets is included in Depreciation expenses and the same amount is 

directly reversed from revaluation reserves through the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account. The same is in 
conformity with revised AS-10 issued by the ICAI and applicable to non corporate assesses from 01.04.2017. 

 g)  Fixed Assets which have been fully depreciated but are still in use, are carried in the books at Re.1/-.
 h)  Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000/- is charged to Profit and Loss Account in the year of purchase. 
 i)  Replacement of UPS/Batteries are also capitalized in the books. AMC & Recharges are expensed off to Profit 

and Loss Account.
 j)  Chairs / Tables are capitalized under “Furniture & Fixtures” irrespective of value of individual Chair thereof.

6 RESERVE FUND AND OTHER RESERVES:
 I)  As per the requirement of Multi–State Co-op. Soc. Act, 2002,
  a)  The Statutory Reserve Fund is bifurcated into 2 Categories viz.:
   i)   Statutory Reserve Fund (Comprising 25% of Net Profit).
   ii)   Contingency Reserve Fund (Comprising 10% of Net Profit).
  b)  Co-operative Education Fund maintained by National Co-operative Union of India (Comprising 1% of Net  

 Profit).
 II)  Membership entrance fees & Dividend payable remaining unclaimed for over 3 years are taken directly to the 

Statutory Reserve Fund.
 III)  Interest accruing on investments against certain earmarked funds viz. Members' Welfare Fund and Staff 

Welfare Fund is credited initially to Profit and Loss Account and thereafter transferred to the respective funds 
through Appropriation of Profits for the year.

7    CASH FLOW STATEMENT (AS-3):
 The Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby Profit before Tax is adjusted for effects of 

transactions of non-cash nature, deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.  The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the bank are segregated based on available information.

8    REVENUE RECOGNITION (AS-9):
 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the 

revenue can be reliably measured. Items of income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis except the 
following items:-

 a)  Interest income on Non Performing Advances is accounted as per policy as specified in para 11 below.
 b)  Commission, Exchange, Brokerage and Locker Rent are recognized as income upfront on receipt. 
 c)  Income from investments is accounted for on accrual basis except dividend on shares of Corporates and 

Mutual Funds, if any, which is accounted for on cash basis.
 d) Income from distribution of Insurance Products is accrued on the basis of business booked.
 e) Interest Income from Investments through TREPS / REPO is shown net.

9  OTHER EXPENSES:
 Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis except as stated below: 
 a)  Interest on Matured Fixed Deposits (MFD) where no renewal instructions are obtained from customers is 

provided at prevailing Savings Bank Deposit Rate.
 b)  Ex-gratia given, if any, is accounted as an appropriation at the rates decided by the Management in accordance 

with provisions of Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002. 

10  OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE:
 Overdue Interest Reserve (OIR) represents unrecovered interest on Non Performing Advances, which is 

correspondingly shown under Interest Receivable as per RBI directives.
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11   RECOVERY FROM NPAs:
 Recovery from Non Performing Advances is firstly appropriated as under:-
 a) In case of Loss Assets towards Principal.
 b) In case of Substandard Assets towards Interest.
 c) In case of Doubtful Assets, where there are chances of recovery, appropriation is firstly towards Interest, in 

other cases towards Principal.

12  STAMP DUTY AND REGISTRATION CHARGES OF LEASED PREMISES:
 Stamp Duty and Registration Charges in respect of Leased Premises is charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

13  FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (AS-11): 
 a)  Transactions denominated in foreign currency are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Monetary foreign currency Assets and Liabilities reflected in the Balance Sheet on the date are 
translated at the rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). The Profit / Loss due 
to revaluation are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

 b)  The outstanding spot and forward contracts are revalued at the applicable rates notified by FEDAI. The 
resulting Profit / Loss is accounted in Profit and Loss Account as per FEDAI / RBI guidelines.

 c)   Premium/discount in respect of foreign exchange hedge contracts is amortized over the period of contract. 
 d)   Contingent Liabilities on account of foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and 

other obligations denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed at closing rates of exchange notified by 
FEDAI.

14  ACCOUNTING FOR AMALGAMATION (AS-14):
 Accounting for Amalgamation in case of Amalgamated Banks with the Bank is carried out as per the amalgamation 

orders passed by RBI and Other Appropriate Statutory Authorities.

15  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (AS-15):

 a)  Gratuity
  Retirement Benefit in the form of Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The Bank has a Gratuity Trust for its 

Employee under the Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of 
India (LIC). During the year, certain amounts have been additionally invested with HDFC Standard Life 
Insurance Company. Gratuity is provided for on the basis of Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent 
Actuary as at the year end, using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with AS-15 on Employee 
Benefit as issued by ICAI.

 b)  Compensated Absences (Leave Encashment)
  Employee Leave Benefits in the nature of Privilege Leave is a defined benefit plan. Employees are not entitled 

to encashment of Sick Leave. Casual Leave is en-cashed at the Calendar year end and not carried forward. 
Privilege Leave which is en-cashable is provided for on the basis of Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent 
Actuary as at the year end using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with the guidelines issued 
under AS-15 on Employee Benefits as issued by ICAI.

 c)  Provident Fund Contribution
  Retirement Benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a Defined Contribution Plan and contributions made to the 

Commissioner of Provident Fund at rates prescribed in the Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions 
Act, 1952 are accounted for on accrual basis.

 d)  Superannuation Contribution
  Contribution towards superannuation scheme of LIC is accounted for on accrual basis as a Defined 

Contribution Plan.

16  SEGMENT REPORTING (AS-17):
 The Business Segments is considered as primary reporting format and the Bank does not have any geographical 

segment. In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Bank has adopted following Business Segments: 
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 a)  Treasury includes all Investment Portfolio, Profit/Loss on sale of investments (Bonds and Government 
Securities) money market operations and foreign exchange transactions including commission based Trade 
Finance transactions. The expenses of this segment consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed from 
external / internal sources and depreciation/ amortization of premium on Held To Maturity investments. Bank 
has Internal Parameters in place which are reviewed at half yearly intervals to calculate the internal fund 
transfer pricing.

 b) Other Banking operations include funded Trade Finance transactions and all other operations not covered 
under Treasury Operations. It primarily comprises of Loans and Advances to wholesale and retail customers 
and other Banking services to such customers. The revenue consists of interest earned on loans and 
advances, fee income on various services and foreign exchange products to customers. Funded Trade 
Finance transactions are classified under Other Banking operations.

17  OPERATING LEASES (AS-19):
 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are 

classified as Operating Leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss 
Account during the year as per lease agreement. 

18  EARNING PER SHARE (EPS (AS-20)):
 Basic Earning per Share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit for the period by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares are calculated on 
monthly basis.

19  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS-21):
 Since Bank does not have any subsidiary companies/ Co- Operative Societies, the Accounting Standard 21 (AS-21) 

regarding consolidated Financial Statements is not applicable to the Bank.

20  DEPOSITS FOR SERVICES:  
 Security Deposits for Electricity and Telephone services are written off equally over a period of 5 financial years.

21  INCOME TAX (AS-22):
 a)  Income Tax expense comprises of Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current Tax is provided for and Deferred Tax 

is accounted for in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Rules framed 
there under.

 b)  Provision for Current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year arrived at as per the 
provision of Income Tax Law and applicable Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) issued by 
Central Board of Direct Tax (CBDT).

 c)  Deferred Tax is recognised on account of timing differences between the book profits and the taxable profits. 
The tax effect of timing differences between the book profits and taxable profits measured using the tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Balance Sheet date are reflected through 
Deferred Tax Asset (DTA)/Deferred Tax Liability (DTL). DTA is recognised only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such DTA can be 
realised.

22  DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS (AS-24):
 Principles of recognition and measurements as set out in the Accounting Standards are considered for the purpose of 

deciding as to when and how to recognise and measure the changes in assets and liabilities and the revenue, 
expenses, gain, losses and cash flow relating to a discontinuing operations. There were no discontinuing operations 
as defined in the standard which need to be separately disclosed.

23  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (AS-26):
        Amortisation of Software is calculated on Cost of Purchase as per agreement value plus all incidental & connected 

expenses related to the implementation and is depreciated from date of commercial usage over a period of 36 
months except for Finacle Software where the amortisation is done as per estimated useful life of the software.
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Net Profit for F.Y. 2019-20 307

Add: Opening Balance in Profit and Loss Account  1

Add: Transfer from Revaluation Reserve, excess appropriation from

Education Fund, Dividend and Ex-gratia 659

Total Profit available for appropriation 967

Appropriations :-

Statutory Reserve Fund @25% of Net Profit 77

Contingency Reserve Fund @10% of Net Profit 31

Education Fund @1% of Net Profit 4

Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund 707

Donation Fund 2

Staff Welfare Fund  54

Members' Welfare Fund 20

Special Reserve U/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act, 1961 70

Balance carried forward 2

Total 967

24  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (AS-28):
 The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an assets may be impaired and 

provides for impairment loss, if any, in the Profit and Loss Account.

25  PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS (AS-29):
 a)  The Bank makes provisions when it has a present obligation as a result of past event(s), where it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit to settle the obligation will be required and a reliable 
estimate can be made of such an obligation.

 b)  Contingent assets are not recognized in the Financial Statements.
 c)  Contingent liabilities of the Bank are in respect of guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit with customers 

under approved limits and the liability thereon is dependent upon terms of contractual obligations, devolvement 
and raising of demand by the concerned parties. These amounts are partly collateralised by margins / 
guarantees/secured charges.  A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation, 
arising from a past event(s), the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank or any present obligation that arises from past 
events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be 
made. 

26  CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS:
 This includes Cash in Hand, Current Account Balances with Banks, Money at Call and Short Notice, LAF, Reverse 

REPO & TREPS and highly liquid deposits maturing within 90 days. 

Schedule No. 16:-
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS: 

1.  Appropriation of Profit:
 The Bank has made the following appropriations of profits for the year ended March 31, 2020 which are subject to 

shareholders approval in the proposed Annual General Meeting.
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 *In view of the RBI Directive no. DOR.BP.BC.No.64/21.02.067/2019-20 dt. 17.04.2020 prohibiting Banks from 
declaring and paying dividend, the Bank has not made any appropriation for dividend on Equity Shares and PNCPS 
out of its Profit of the Current Year.

2.  Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) 
  As per approval for Rs.5,000.00 Lacs granted by RBI vide its letter no. DCBS/MRO/BSS I/5911/12.07.163/ 2014-15 

dated February 25, 2015 and the Director to Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies vide its letter no. R-
11017/6/2004 – L and M (Pt.) dated November 28, 2014, and Board Approval dated September 23, 2014, in the 
current year, the Bank has raised Rs. 12.00 Lacs by way of Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) 
(P.Y. Rs. 96.70 Lacs) for raising Tier I Capital thus, cumulatively amounting to Rs. 1,364.10 Lacs as on 31.03.2020.

 The terms and conditions regarding issue of Preference Shares remains same as detailed in Notes to Accounts of 
F.Y. 2016-17; except for payment of dividend which is now guided by current RBI Circular as referred above in point 
no. 1.  

3.  Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Deposits (LTD):
 The Balance in LTD subscribed as at 31st March, 2020 is Rs. 15,291.50 Lacs which includes: -
 a)  Rs.2,765.75 Lacs during F.Y. 2014-15 (Series-I)
 b)  Rs.5,570.25 Lacs during F.Y. 2015-16 (Series-II)
 c)  Rs.5,400.00 Lacs during F.Y. 2016-17 (Series-III)
 d) Rs.1,555.50 Lacs during F.Y. 2019-20 (Series – IV)

 Repayment of all LTD Series will be done only at maturity with prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India wherever 
required.

 The amount of LTD Series I, Series II, Series III and Series IV after applying relevant discounting factors is included in 
the Tier-II capital funds of the Bank for Capital Adequacy purpose as per RBI Guidelines.

4.  Settlement Credit/Debit Account:
 Settlement Debit and Credit Accounts (Contra) represents mirror impact of the cost of acquisition of Shree Shahu Co-

operative Bank Ltd. (SSCBL) and the entries pertaining to the Gains / Losses incurred post merger on Assets and 
Liabilities taken over.

5.  During the year, the Bank has written off an amount of Rs.3,543.76 Lacs (P.Y.  Rs.3,799.42 Lacs) towards bad debts 
which is identified by the Management as irrecoverable, approved by the Board of Directors and certified by the 
Statutory Auditors. The said amount has been fully provided for, and accordingly an equivalent amount has been 
written back from the Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve.

6. Claims receivable outstanding more than 1 year is provided in the accounts over a period of 3 years. The same is 
disclosed net of provisions thereon.

7.  Commission and Exchange Income include Income from Forex Business Rs.551.40 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.564.79 Lacs). 
Exchange Profit is Rs.92.61 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.122.98 Lacs). 

8.  The Bank has earned an Income of Rs.163.55 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.136.21 Lacs) on account of Corporate Agency of 
Insurance Business with Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd., Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd., Max Life 
Insurance Co. Ltd., Religare Health Insurance Co. Ltd. and ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd. The same is 
disclosed under Commission, Exchange and Brokerage in the Profit and Loss Account.

9.  The Bank has earned an Income of Rs.22.24 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.21.58 Lacs) on account of Corporate Agency of Mutual 
Fund business with Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Ltd., Nippon India Mutual Fund (Previously known as Reliance Nippon 
Life Asset Management Co Ltd), HDFC Asset Management Co. Ltd and SBI Funds Management Co. Ltd. The same 
is disclosed under Commission, Exchange and Brokerage in the Profit and Loss Account.
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10.  Disclosure under AS -15 “Employee Benefits” Provident Fund:
          

11 .  Disclosure under AS-15 “Employee Benefits” - Gratuity:
 The following table sets out the status of the Gratuity Plan as required under AS-15. Reconciliation of opening 

and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:       
                      

 Investments of Employees Gratuity Fund is held with LIC of India & HDFC Life. Necessary provisions is made in 
the Books of Accounts as per Actuarial Valuation Report.
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Sr.
No.

Gratuity Funded
Particulars 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 1 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the date of Balance Sheet:    

   Discount Rate 6.80% 7.50%

   Salary Escalation 3.75% 4.00%

  Expected Return on Plan Assets 6.80% 7.50%

 2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of present
  value of obligation    

   Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 2,386.94 2,350.91

  Interest cost 173.09 166.53

  Current service cost 156.95 148.89

  Benefit Paid (280.15) (280.24)

  Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 171.13 0.85

  Present value of obligation as at end of the year 2,607.96 2,386.94 

 3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present
  value of plan assets    

  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year  2,338.18 2,321.50

  Expected return on plan assets 175.32 169.96

  Contributions 126.80 114.82

  Benefits paid (280.15) (280.24)

  Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets 180.57 12.14

  Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 2,540.72 2,338.18

  4 Amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet     

  Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 2,607.96 2,386.94

  Present value of plan assets as at the end of the year 2,540.72 2,338.18

  Funded Status  67.24 48.76

  Net (Asset)/Liability in Balance Sheet 67.24 48.76

 5 Expenses Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account     

  Current service cost 156.95 148.89

  Interest cost 173.10 166.53

  Expected return on plan assets (175.32) (169.96)

  Net  Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year (9.45) (11.28)

  Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss Account 145.28 134.18

(` in Lacs)

Particulars 
Provident Fund

   31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Employment and Retirement Benefits 

Post Employment Benefits 

Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund
debited to Profit and Loss Account 644.55 622.47

(` in Lacs)
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12.  Disclosure under AS-15 “Employee Benefits” - Leave Encashment:            

 Discounting Rate is benchmarked to 10 years Government Security yield.

Sr.
No.

Leave Encashment
Particulars 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 1 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the date of Balance Sheet:    

  Discount Rate 6.80% 7.50%

  Salary Escalation 3.75% 4.00%

  Expected Return on Plan Assets 6.80% 7.50%

 2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present
  value of obligation  

  Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 1,248.61 1,172.01

  Interest cost 90.49 89.07

  Current service cost 76.48 68.95 

  Benefit paid (311.46) (224.10)

  Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 287.12 142.68

  Present value of obligation as at end of the year 1,391.24 1,248.61

 3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present
  value of plan assets  

  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  1,105.00 1,273.00

  Expected return on plan assets 82.10 99.37

  Contributions / (Utilization) 211.43 -

  Benefits paid - (224.10)

  Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets 14.50 (10.10)

  Redemption from / Addition to the fund 28.07 (33.17)

  Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 1,441.10 1,105.00

 4 The amounts to be recognised in the Balance Sheet  

  Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1,391.24 1,248.61

  Present value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1,441.10 1,105.00

  Funded Status (49.86) 143.61

  Net (Asset)/Liability in Balance Sheet (49.86) 143.61

 5 Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and
  Loss Account  

  Current service cost 76.48 68.96

  Interest cost 90.49 89.07

  Expected return on plan assets (82.10) (99.37)

  Net  Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year 272.62 152.77

  Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss Account 357.49 211.43

(` in Lacs)

Investments of employees Leave Encashment Fund is held in Fixed Deposits with Nationalised Banks/HDFC Life.
Necessary provisions are made in the Books of Accounts as per Actuarial Valuation Report.



Segment Revenue 22,309.73  57,316.30  79,626.03  17,476.98 61,604.08 79,081.06

Segment Expenses 20,512.44 58,285.94 78,798.39  14,701.05 58,179.07 72,880.12

Result 1,797.29 (969.64) 827.64  2,775.93 3,425.01 6,200.94

Unallocated expenses   174.73    197.30

Operating profit   652.91    6,003.64

Income Tax   345.69    1,977.94

Net Profit   307.22    4,025.70

Other Information

Segment assets 3,24,454.99 5,68,790.85  8,93,245.84  2,56,410.67 6,03,208.40 8,59,619.07

Unallocated assets   23,250.64    22,927.34

Total assets   9,16,496.48    8,82,546.41

Segment liabilities 3,02,537.92 5,59,693.07  8,62,231.00  2,21,878.74 6,05,788.71 8,27,667.45

Unallocated liabilities   18,763.55   19,781.90

Shareholders’ Funds   35,501.93   35,097.06

Total liabilities   9,16,496.48    8,82,546.41
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For 2019-20
Particulars

For 2018-19

(R in Lacs)

Treasury
and  Forex

Other

Banking

Operations

Total Treasury
and Forex

Other

Banking

Operations

Total

13.  Disclosure under AS 17 on''Segment Reporting'':

         Information about Primary Business Segments:

Notes: -

 The Bank is engaged into two main business segments, (described in Policy Note 15).

 The above segments are based on the currently identified segments taking into account the nature of services 
provided, the risks and returns, overall organisation structure of the Bank and the internal financial reporting system.

 Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts directly identifiable to each of the 
segments and also amounts apportioned/allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment liability excludes capital & 
reserve other than those specifically identifiable with a segment. Treasury result is net of transfer from IFR.

14.  Disclosure under AS - 18 on “Related Party Transactions”: 

 The Bank is a Co-operative society under the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and there are no Related 
Parties requiring a disclosure under Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) other than of the Key Management Personnel. 

 There being only one Managing Director Shri. Chintamani V. Nadkarni for the financial year 2019-20, in terms of RBI 
circular dated March 29, 2003, he being a single party coming under the category, no further details thereon are 
required to be disclosed.

15.  Disclosure under AS - 19 “Leases”:

 The Bank has entered into cancellable operating leases for the branches premises except for the initial lock in period. 
The disclosures under AS-19 on 'Leases' issued by ICAI are as follows:

 a)  Lease rental payments of Rs.1,465.61 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.1,382.36 Lacs) have been recognised during the year in 
the Profit and Loss Account.

 b)  The lease agreements entered into pertain to use of premises at the branches. The lease agreements do not 
have any undue restrictive or onerous clauses other than those normally prevalent in similar agreements 
regarding use of assets, lease escalations, renewals and a restriction on sub-leases.



Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year : 6,049.68 5,655.59

-Not later than one year 1,424.04 1,381.32

-Later than one year and not later than five years 3,847.75 3,669.73

-Later than five years 777.89 604.54

Total of minimum lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account for the year.  1,465.61 1,382.36

(R in Lacs)

(R in Lacs)

 Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Opening Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 1,022.84 836.67

Add : Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 162.26 211.84

Less : Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims* 26.50 25.67

Closing Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 1,158.60 1,022.84

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Net Profit/(Loss) after income tax 307.22 4,025.70

(*) Weighted average number of shares 852.32 843.52

Nominal Value of Shares (Rs.) 10 10

EPS (Rs.) 0.36 4.77

(*) Monthly Weighted average number of shares

Particulars As At During  As At

 31.03.2019 2019-20 31.03.2020

DTA    

Provision for Advances 2,154.93 93.13 2,248.06

Provision for Leave Encashment 436.26 49.83 486.09

Total 2,591.19 142.96 2,734.15

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 338.51 38.38 376.89

Others (Special Reserve U/s 36 (1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961) 828.41 23.03 851.44

Total 1,166.92 61.41 1,228.33

Net DTA/(DTL) 1,424.27 81.55 1,505.82
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(R in Lacs)

Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS - 19):

Lease agreements in respect of all leased premises are renewed as of date. Amount considered above is as per the final 
date of lease agreement. 

16.  Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF) (Schedule 14)- Contingent Liability:
 As required under RBI circular DBOD no. DEAF.Cell.BC.101/30.01.002/2013-14 dated March 21, 2014, the Bank 

has transferred so far following funds to DEAF with RBI. The movement of the DEAF funds is as follows:

*Does not include an amount of Rs. 0.63 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 0.90 Lacs) that has already been paid by the Bank to the eligible 
depositors, claim for which has been lodged with the RBI and reimbursement of which is expected. This amount is shown 
as receivable under Other Assets-Schedule 13.

17.  Earnings per Share (EPS) (AS - 20):

18.  Accounting for Taxes on Income (AS - 22):

 Disclosures on major components of DTA/DTL are as under:
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Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Carrying Amount at the Beginning of the Year 694.29 1,384.07

Additions during the Year 110.12 108.69

 804.41 1,492.76

Amortisation during the Year  212.26 798.47

Carrying Amount at the End of the Year  592.15 694.29

(R in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

a. No. of accounts 

 (No. of Borrowers : C.Y. NIL and P.Y. - 54*) - 111 

b. Aggregate value (net of provisions) of
 accounts sold to SC/RC - 9,637.79

c. Aggregate consideration - 11,622.80

d. Additional consideration realized in respect
 of accounts transferred in earlier years net of expenses 1,226.36 N.A.

e. Aggregate gain  over net book value - 1,985.01

       * (Includes C.Y. - NIL Retail borrowers  (P.Y. 27))

19.  Intangible Assets (AS - 26) :
 Details of Computer Software Expenses (Intangible Asset) disclosed under Schedule 13 – Other Assets, are as 

under:

20.  Impairment of Assets (AS - 28) :
 The Bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets and as such no provision under 

Accounting Standard 28 issued by ICAI is required. 

21.  Details of financial assets sold during the year to SC/RC for Asset Reconstruction: 

22.  There are no material prior period item’s, except as disclosed elsewhere, included in Profit and Loss account 
required to be disclosed as per Accounting Standard 5 read with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines. Therefore, 
these have been charged and  accounted for to their respective head of accounts.

23.  The Bank has taken a Group Mediclaim Policy and has paid a premium of Rs. 116.82 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 87.44 Lacs) on 
this account. 

24.  The Bank has not undertaken any transaction in respect of Interest Rate Future (As per RBI Circular UBD (PCB) BPD 
CIR NO. 17/13.01.000/2009-10 dated October 28, 2009).

25.  In respect of Court litigations against the Bank, there are necessary legal opinions that there will be no adverse orders 
causing any monetary impact. The Bank considers no provisioning necessary in respect of these court litigation.

 Bank is contesting Income Tax Cases for / against in appeal at various levels.  
 Bank has the necessary written opinion from an Independent Tax Counsel that there will be no liabilities /demands to 

be paid in this regard.  Bank also has favorable judgment substantiating their view. Consequentially no provision is 
considered necessary in this regard. Contingent Liability in respect of Court/Tax cases is disclosed at principal 
amount claimed excluding interest and penalties thereon.

26.  Goods and Service Tax: 
st  Goods and Services Tax (GST) has been implemented w.e.f. 1 July, 2017. Accordingly, GST collected is accounted 

in ‘GST’ on liabilities side and GST paid to Vendor is accounted in ‘VGST’ on assets side. Out of the ‘VGST’ on assets 
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side, eligible Input Tax Credit is availed as set off. In case, eligible Input Tax Credit remains unutilized, the same is 
carried forward and set off subsequently. The Input Tax Credit on expenses which is not allowable to be set off as per 
GST Law, is expensed out.

 In case of fixed assets, eligible Input Tax Credit of GST paid to the vendor is utilized against the amount of GST 
collected from the customers and disallowed portion of Input Tax Credit is added back to the value of the asset i.e. the 
same is capitalized.

 Income and Expenses on which GST is applicable are accounted for net of GST. 

27.  Collection Account of Rs.22.87 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.66.42 Lacs) disclosed in Other Liabilities under Schedule-5 of Accounts 
represents amounts due to shareholders of erstwhile Shri. Shahu Co-op Bank. 

 On the date of merger, the initial amount of Rs. 210.21 Lacs was repayable after 10 years as per merger order issued 
by Registrar, Co-operative Societies, Maharashtra State, dt. 23.06.2008. 

 Rs. 151.93 Lacs has already been repaid as of date, leaving Rs.12.87 lacs to be repaid and Rs.10 Lacs is additionally 
held in this account by the Bank as a matter of prudence for settlements of claims, if any. Rs.35.41 Lac is transferred 
to General Reserve as per clause no 4 (a) of Merger scheme as per the order by Commissioner for Co-operation and 
Registrar, Co-op. Societies, Maharashtra , Pune in F.Y. 2018-19.

28.  Capital Commitments:
 Estimated amount of contracts stated net of CWIP executed on capital account as of date aggregate to Rs. 136.39 

Lacs. (P.Y. Rs. 73.00 Lacs) 

29.  As per RBI circular No. DCBR. BPD (PCB).MC.No. 4/16.20.000/2015-16 dated 01.07.2015, Bank needs to hold a 
minimum 5% of AFS/HFT category of Investment portfolio. 

 Bank continues to hold IFR as at 31.03.2020, in compliance with RBI guidelines.

30.  Pay order/Drafts outstanding as at 31.03.2020 includes amount of Rs.75.69 Lacs being issuance towards 
disbursement of Advances.

 
31.  The Bank has made adequate interest provision of Rs. 158.63 Lacs on matured Term Deposits of Rs. 1,154.82 Lacs 

as on 31.03.2020 as per present saving Bank rate.

32.  In respect of Deferred Revenue Expenditure (Software): - Till the Previous Year, the Bank was assessing the useful 
life of DRE, Intangible Assets over 3 years as per RBI circular UBD. BPD. PCB. Cir. No. 28 /12.05.001/2005-06 & 
depreciating it on Straight Line Method.

 In the Current year, the Bank has followed AS 26 – Accounting for Intangible Assets which states that “Since Software 
is used for longer duration in the Bank, it would be more appropriate to depreciate it to the best possible useful life 
described by the applicable statute”. 

 The Bank has re-assessed the useful life of the remaining block of Finacle Software as 5 years from 1/4/2019 which 
will henceforth be depreciated over the residual period to arrive at its written down value. 

 The depreciation charged to the Profit and Loss as per the current method is Rs.130.19 Lacs against Rs 576.98 Lacs 
(charge as per the previous method). The Profit and Loss Account and Net Fixed Assets are positively impacted by 
Rs. 446.79 Lacs by  this change of accounting policy.

33.  For Assets other than Software, the depreciation on addition during the year is accounted from the completed month 
of it being put to use as against the depreciation for 12 months in previous year. The Profit and Loss Account and net 
Fixed Assets are positively impacted by Rs. 28.91 Lacs as a result. 

34.  LCBD Exposure on PMC Bank Limited was considered under Sub-Standard Category and Rs 7.70 Cr. was provided 
th @ 10% on year end exposure. Post RBI circular dated 20 April 2020, requiring 20% provision on exposure with PMC 

Bank Limited, to be provided over 5 years, as of date, the Bank has appropriated the additional 10% of Rs. 7.70 Cr. 
through BDDF. 



th35.   As per Board approved policy, Bank has issued Moratorium to 22 borrowers in SMA 2 Category as of 29  February, 
2020, having exposure of Rs.1,436.12 Lacs, and provided Rs.71.25 Lacs @ 5%  as at 31.03.2020. This is in 

thaccordance with RBI Circulars DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20, dated 17  April 2020 . There is a recovery in 2 
borrower accounts with exposure of Rs.502.03 Lacs till 30.06.2020 and hence as per RBI Circular No. 4775/ 

th06.18.000/ 2019-20 ,dated 15  May 2020, provision of Rs.25.10 Lacs made thereon is reversed. Bank will be making 
the requisite 5% provision of Rs.46.71 Lacs on 30.06.2020. 

 Advances amounting to Rs.2,254.30 Cr. i.e. 45.97% of the Advances Portfolio of the Bank have been granted 
Moratorium on payment of Interest and Principal as per extent RBI Regulatory Circulars on Moratorium.

36.  The Covid pandemic has caused widespread economic disruptions, leading to financial stress on certain sectors of 
the economy.  These external risks beyond the Bank’s control have affected borrower liquidity and cash flows. 
Consequentially, the Bank’s Credit Monitoring Department (CMD) is closely monitoring the Borrower Accounts, pro-
actively for their performance and recovery. Necessary Moratorium have been given in accordance by a Board 
approved policy as per existing RBI Circulars. 

th Restructuring of MSME Accounts as per RBI Circular no. DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 dated, 11  Feb 
2020, is being done wherever appropriate.  

 
 The Bank has strengthened it's Monitoring and Recovery Team under constant ongoing supervision of their 

respective Committees. Board oversight is also being exercised. The Bank has ensured that the customer 
inconvenience if any, was completely minimized during the lockdown period.

 Going forward, the Bank Board and its Management will be continuously reviewing the economic situation and the 
future developments for its impact on Borrower recovery to initiate immediate corrective action.   

 The Bank is hopeful that the situation will ease in the end of F.Y. 2020-21. With continuation of favorable Government 
& RBI interventions coupled with prompt and timely Bank action, the Bank expects to mitigate any significant 
impairment to its bottom line going ahead.        

  
37.  Cash and Cash equivalent as per schedule 6 and 7(a) is Rs. 605.25 Lacs (P.Y. Rs.1,131.38 Lacs).

38.  Entries with respect to Bad Debt write off in two Borrower account, duly approved as per Bank policy, amounting to 
Rs.30.35 Cr for the Current Financial Year are accounted through Memorandum of Changes (MOC). The duly 
approved MOC with related entries forms an integral part of the books of account of the Bank.

39.  Advances includes Rs.1.65 Cr. reported to RBI as an alleged incident informed by the Customer. Pending disposal of 
this case since matter is subjudice in the court, no provision is considered necessary.

 The Bank has disclosed this amount under the head “Contingent Liability”. The Bank holds more than adequate 
provision for Standard Advances in its Books of Accounts.  

40.  Previous year figures are re-grouped, re-arranged or modified wherever necessary to conform to the presentation of 
the current year.
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 Sr. No. Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 1. A. Tier-I Ratio  8.69% 8.24%

  B.  Tier-II Ratio  4.48% 4.66%

  CRAR    13.17% 12.90%

 2. Movement of CRAR   

  A.Tier-I Capital 38,720.93 38,274.32

  B.Tier-II Capital 19,943.51 21,644.23

  Capital Funds 58,664.44 59,918.55

  C.Risk Weighted Assets 4,45,496.53 4,64,472.08

(R in Lacs)

 3. Value of Investments is as under: 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

  Government/ Approved Securities (Market Value) 2,15,668.86 1,99,557.38   

  Bonds of Public Sector Undertakings (Market Value) 1,536.90 -

  Other Investments
  (Cost Value or Market Value whichever is less) 14,941.34 11,904.46

  Shares in Co-operative Institution (Cost Value) 0.14 0.14

  TOTAL MARKET VALUE 2,32,207.92 2,11,493.53

  TOTAL FACE VALUE 2,21,342.79 2,10,919.11

  TOTAL BOOK VALUE  2,20,207.14 2,08,561.36 

(R in Lacs)

Schedule No. 17 :
Disclosures as per RBI Guidelines: –  
DCBR.BPD.(PCB). MC.No.10 /09.18.201/2015-16 dated 01.07.2015

*As per ICAI guidelines, Bank conservatively considers Software as an intangible assets & deducts the same from Capital 
funds to arrive at CRAR. Had it not done so, the CRAR would have been 13.30% (P.Y. 13.03%). 

Investment of Face Value Rs.2,000.00 Lacs as on 31st March 2020 (Face Value P.Y.Rs. 2,000.00 Lacs) and Market Value 
stRs. 2,121.80 Lacs as on 31  March 2020 (Market Value P.Y. Rs. 2,032.00 Lacs) have been lodged with CCIL as Collateral 

/Settlement Guarantee Fund.

stFurther, Investment of Face Value Rs.13,500.00 Lacs as on 31  March 2020 (Face Value P.Y. Rs.5,500 Lacs) and Market 
stValue Rs.13,633.00 Lacs as on 31  March 2020 (Market Value P.Y.Rs.5,095.75 Lacs) have been lodged with CBLO as 

Collateral/Settlement Guarantee Fund.

stInvestment of Face Value Rs.125.00 Lacs as on 31  March 2020 (Face Value P.Y. Rs. 125.00 Lacs) and Market Value 
st Rs.121.73 Lacs as on 31 March 2020 (Market Value P.Y. 113.37 Lacs) have been lodged with CCIL as Contribution to 

Default Fund- USD INR Segment.

Investment of Face Value Rs. 125.00 Lacs as on 31st March 2020 (Face Value P.Y. Rs. 125.00 Lacs) and Market Value 
Rs.121.73 Lacs as on 31st March 2020 (Market Value P.Y. Rs.113.37 Lacs) have been lodged with CCIL as Contribution to 
Default Fund- Forex Forward Segment.

st Investment of Face Value Rs. 17,000.00 Lacs as on 31 March 2020 (Face Value P.Y. Rs. 16,500.00 Lacs, Book Value 
stRs.16,444.44 Lacs as on 31  March 2020 (Book Value P.Y. Rs.15,944.44 Lacs)  and Market Value Rs.17,533.67 Lacs as 

ston 31  March 2020 (Market Value Rs.16,040.00 Lacs) have been liened for Reserve Fund Investment.



Securities sold under REPO 
    
(i) Government 10,300.00 10,300.00 10,300.00 10,300.00
 Securities (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)

(ii) Corporate Debt NIL NIL NIL NIL
 Securities      (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Securities
purchased under Reverse REPO
 
(i) Government 1,200.00 71,000.00 8,669.02 68,800.00
 Securities (100.00)  (14,000.00)  (2,904.52) (18,500.00)
  
(ii) Corporate Debt NIL NIL NIL NIL 
 Securities (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)

Note:- Figures in bracket represent previous year’s figures.

6.  Disclosure regarding Non-SLR Investments in Bonds as on 31.03.2020.

 A. Issuer composition 
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stInvestment of Face Value Rs.9,500.00 Lacs as on 31st March 2020 and Market Value Rs.10,717.13 Lacs as on 31  March 
2020 have been lodged with RBI towards LTRO Margin.

4. A. Foreign Currency Liabilities 694.43 870.73

 B. Foreign Currency Assets 691.79 805.81     

Sr.No. Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

5.  In connection with Repo/Reverse Repo transactions: (in Face Value terms)       

                     (` in Lacs)

 Minimum
outstanding

during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average
outstanding

during the year

Outstanding
as on

March 31,2020

Particulars

(` in Lacs)

Amount

Extent of
'Below
Investment
Grade' securities

Extent of
'Unrated'
Securities

Extent of
'Unlisted'
Securities

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

  1,500.00 - - -

A. PSU's (-) (-) (-) (-)

  - - - -

B. FI's (-) (-) (-) (-)

  - - - -

C. Nationalised Bank (-) (-) (-) (-)

  - - - -

D. Mutual Funds (-) (-) (-) (-)

E. Others* (incl. SR Bonds) 14,941.48  8,678.23 8,678.23

 Provisions held towards - - - -

F.  Depreciation (0.09) (-) (0.09) (-)

 TOTAL 16,441.48 - 8,678.23 8,678.23

 

Sr.
No. Issuer

*includes Shares of National Payment Corporation of India towards membership, SR Bonds and NCDs.
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 7. Advances to sensitive sectors 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

  Against - 

  a. Housing* 90,346.41 90,743.90

  b. Construction business 
  (excluding rent discounting) 3,252.94 5,736.82

  c. Real estate ** 17,460.05 15,396.09

  d. Against Shares and Debentures 0.52 17.08

  *Includes staff housing loans of Rs. 7,997.92  Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 8,461.34 Lacs)

  ** Excludes IPRE (Income Producing Real Estate) of Rs. 8,017.89 Lacs

  (P.Y. Rs. 8,327.32 Lacs)

  **Includes Non-Funded CRE Advances of Rs. 346.20 Lacs

  (P.Y. Rs. 365.00 Lacs) and Overdraft against property of Rs. 1,124.93 Lacs

  (P.Y. Rs. 1,856.42 Lacs)

(R in Lacs)

  Particulars 31.03.2020  31.03.2019

 9. Average cost of deposits 6.74% 6.48%

  Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 10. NPAs at the end of the year

  a. Gross NPAs 36,106.64 20,079.92

  b. Net NPAs ** 24,378.47 8,858.47

B.  Non Performing Investments: -NIL (For F.Y. 2019-20 and F.Y. 2018-19). Hence movement not disclosed.

8.  There have been no sanctioned limits to directors and relatives and the company/ firm where they are interested 
(Funded and Non Funded) as at 31.03.2020 (P.Y. – NIL). Advances to directors outstanding as at 31.03.2020 is Nil 
(P.Y. - NIL). Directors and relatives have not given any guarantees for any limits sanctioned by the Bank.

 ** During the year, the Bank has proposed appropriation subject to approval of AGM of an amount of Rs. 707.00 Lacs 

(P.Y. Rs. 1,200.00 Lacs) towards Bad and Doubtful Debt Fund (BDDF) over and above the existing provision made 

towards Bad and Doubtful Debts. The proposed amount in the said fund is netted off against NPAs in arriving at the 

figure of net NPAs. Cumulative BDDF is Rs. 2,323.45 Lacs.  



(R in Lacs)

  Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 11. Movements in Gross NPA  

  Opening Balance – Gross NPAs  20,079.92 31,716.24

  Additions during the year * 23,636.61 8,047.13

  Less: Recovered /Upgraded/ Written Off/closed 7,609.89 6,852.76

  Less: Advances assigned to ARC - 12,830.69

  Closing Balance – Gross NPA 36,106.64 20,079.92

  * Does not include amounts of NPAs of Rs. 8,480.20
  Lacs added and recovered during the current year.
  (P.Y. Rs. 19,432.36 Lacs)   

  Net NPA  

  Gross NPA 36,106.64 20,079.92

  Less: Provision/appropriation as at end Mar 2020 11,728.17 11,221.45

  Net NPAs 24,378.47 8,858.47

 12. Profitability ** 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

  A. Interest income as a percentage of working funds.  7.77% 8.13%

  B. Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds.  0.72% 0.59%

  C.Operating profit as a percentage of working funds. 0.53% 1.07%

  D. Return on Assets (Net Profit /Average of working funds). 0.03% 0.49%

  E. Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee (Rs. Lacs). 1,126.96 1,106.92

  F. Profit per employee (Rs. Lacs). 0.27 3.47

  ** Working Fund excludes Contra items in Balance Sheet. 
(R in Lacs)

  Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 13. Provisions made towards NPA during the year debited to 3,905.00 3,137.20
  Profit and Loss Accounts 

(R in Lacs)

  Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 14. Contingent provision made/written back during the year against  58.20 13.20
  depreciation in investment  

(R in Lacs)

(R in Lacs)

  Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 15.  Provisions made towards standard assets during the  - -
  year debited to Profit and Loss Account 

  Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

 16.  Provisions made towards Moratorium assets during the  46.15 -
  year debited to Profit and Loss Account 
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  Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

 17. Movement in provisions    

  A. Towards NPAs  

  I. Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  

  Opening Balance 9,043.48 9,705.70

  Add: Provision during the year  3,905.00 3,137.20

  Total 12,948.48 12,842.90

  Less: Write back of provision on account of closure of/recovery in/ (3,543.76) (3,799.42)
  write off of NPA/ ARC

  Closing Balance  9,404.72 9,043.48

  ii. Bad and Doubtful Debts Fund  

  Opening Balance 2,177.97 3,025.00

  Add: Amount appropriated from profits after tax 707.00 1,200.00

  Less: Write back of provision on account of sale of assets to ARC/ (561.52) (2,047.03)

  Interest Reversal on NPA

  Closing Balance 2,323.45 2,177.97

   

  B. Towards Standard Assets   

  Opening Balance 2,189.00 2,189.00

  Add: Additions during the year  - -

  Less: Written back during the year - -

  Closing Balance  2,189.00 2,189.00

  C. Towards Assets where Moratorium Issued

  Opening Balance - -

  Add: Additions during the year  71.25 -

  Less: Written back during the year 25.10 -

  Closing Balance  46.15 -

(R in Lacs)

(R in Lacs)

 18. Movements in Contingent provisions against depreciation in investment  31.03.2020 31.03.2019

  Opening Balance 14.80 1.60

  Add: Provision made during the year 58.20 13.20

  Less: Excess provision reversed - -

  Closing Balance 73.00 14.80

(R in Lacs)

 19. Movements in Investment Fluctuation Reserve 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

  Opening Balance 1,232.54 1,525.54

  Additions during the year  - 107.00

  Less: Excess written back - 400.00

  Closing Balance 1,232.54 1,232.54



 20. Disclosure in respect of Restructured Accounts as per RBI master circular no. RBI/2009-
  10/93UBD. PCB.MC.No. 3 / 09.14.000 / 2009-10 July 1, 2009 (Annexure - VIII)

Restructured Accounts during F.Y. 2019-20

  Housing Loans  SME Debt 
   Restructuring  Others

Standard No of Borrowers - 5 -

Advances Amount Outstanding  686.14 - 

Restructured Sacrifice - - -

Substandard No of Borrowers - - -

Accounts Amount Outstanding - - -

Restructured Sacrifice - - -

Doubtful No of Borrowers - 1 -

Accounts Amount Outstanding - 364.05 - 

Restructured Sacrifice - - -

Total No of Borrowers - 6 -

 Amount Outstanding - 1,050.19 -  

 Sacrifice - - -

Note: There are no accounts pending for restructuring where applications have been received and not approved.
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(R in Lacs)

21.  DICGC Insurance Premium paid for the current financial year is Rs. 920.07  Lacs  (P.Y. Rs.819.72 Lacs). 

22.   No penalty or fine has been charged by the RBI for the current financial year. 

23.  There has been no default on CRR & SLR stipulated requirement by the Bank during the year.  

24.  Capital Charge on Market Risk :

 Market Risk in Trading book - Standardized Modified Duration Approach:

 Qualitative Disclosures:-
 The general qualitative disclosure requirement for market risk:-

 Strategies and Processes:
 Investment Policy which includes Market Risk Management is in line with the RBI regulations vide circular 

UBD.BPD.(PCB). Cir. No. 42/09.11.600/2009-10 dated February 8, 2010 and business requirements. 
 The overall objective of market risk management is to enhance profitability by improving the Bank's competitive 

advantage and mitigate loss from all types of market risk loss events.
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 Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting / Measurement Systems:
 The Bank has regulatory / internal limits for various Instruments in place. 
 Various exposure limits for market risk management such as Overnight Limit, Aggregate Gap Limit and Investment 

Limit etc. are in place.
 The portfolio covered by Standardized Modified Duration Approach for computation of Capital Charge for Market 

Risk includes investment portfolio held under AFS and Forex Open positions.

 Quantitative Disclosures: 

25.  Information under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)
 The information from suppliers/service providers regarding their registration under MSMED Act, 2006 is not fully 

received by the Bank. Therefore, information relating to cases of delays if any, in payment to such enterprises or of 
interest payments due to such delays is not given.

26.  There is no breach in Single Borrower / Group Borrower limit.

Particulars                                                                                                         Amount of Capital Required

  31.03.2020 31.03.2019

• Interest rate risk 1,779.40 739.06

• Equity position risk 5.11 5.11

• Foreign exchange risk 63.27 56.88

(R in Lacs)
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g§MmcH$ _§S>imMm Ahdmc (g§{já Jmofdmam)
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31 _mM© 2020 ̀ m Am{W©H$ df©AIoarMm ~±Ho$Mm 103 dm dm{f©H$ Ahdmc g§MmcH$ _§S>i gmXa H$arV Amho.

~±qH$J joÌmMm AmT>mdm:

1) H$moamoZm _hm_mar_wio OmJ{VH$ Am{W©H$ CcmT>mctMr JVr pñWamdcr. `mMm n[aUm_ gd©gm_mÝ`m§À`m OrdZe¡crda {XgyZ Amcm. 
OJmVrc Odi Odi 200 amï´>m§Zm ̀ mMr Am{W©H$ Pi nmohmoMcr.

2) OJmVrc àJV VgoM  àJ{Verc Xoem§À`m AW©ì`dñWoda ̀ mMm Xþîn[aUm_ hmoD$Z OrS>rnr dmT>t_Yo H$_mcrMr KQ> Pmcr.

 EH§$XarV OmJ{VH$ AW©ì`dñWm pñWamdÊ`mÀ`m _mJm©da dmQ>Mmc H$arV Amho. VargwÕm Am{W©H$ dmT>rÀ`m JVr~X²Xc AOyZhr 
gme§H$Vm  Amho.

^maVr` AW©ì`dñWm :

2019-20 `m Am[W©H$ dfm©V ^maVr` AW©ì`dñWoVrc OrS>rnr dmT> hr Ý`yZV_ ñVamda `oD$Z Ho$di 4.2% BVH$s {XgyZ `oVo. `m 
dfm©Vrc eodQ>À`m {V_mhrVrc dmT> hr Ho$di 3.1% EdT>rM Pmcr d hr Joë`m 10 dfm©Vrc gdm©V H$_r {ZX}em§H$ Xe©dVo.

 · Joë`m Am{W©H$ dfm©nmgyZ ̂ maVmZo {S>OrQ>c no_|Q> ì`dñWm, ̀ ynrAm`², nm°g, VgoM _mo~mB©c A°n Aem {d{dY ZdrZ V§ÌkmZmMm 
Adc§~ Ho$cm Amho.

 · Am{W©H$ g_mdoeH$VoMo C{Ôï> gmÜ` H$aÊ`mgmR>r cKw{dÎm ~±H$m d no_|Q> ~±H$mZr ZdZdrZ àUmctMm d V§ÌkmZmMm A§{JH$ma Ho$cm 
Amho.

 · Mmcy Am{W©H$ dfm©nmgyZ åhUOoM 1 E{àc 2020 nmgyZ 10 amï´>r`H¥$V ~±H$m§Mo {dcrZrH$aU n§Om~ Z°eZc ~±H$, H°$Zam ~±H$, 
`w{Z`Z ~±H$ Am°\$ B§{S>`m d B§{S>`Z ~±H$ ̀ m 4 à_wI ~±H$m_Yo Pmco.

 · gaH$maZo ̀ mdfu amï´>r`H¥$V ~±H$m§À`m ̂ mJ^m§S>dcm_Yo é.1.06 H$moQ>tMr ̂ a KmVcr Amho.

 · {S>OrQ>c ì`dhmamcm MmcZm XoÊ`mgmR>r [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo "BcoŠQ´>m°{ZH$ \§$S> Q´>mÝg\$a'Mr ì`dñWm 24�7 VËdmda nwa{dcr Amho.

 · [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo ZmJar ghH$mar ~±H$mH$arVm Ho$coë`m {ZH$fm§_Ü`o H$mhr ~Xc Ho$co AmhoV Vo nwT>rcà_mUo:-

 A) EH$c d g_yh H$O©Xmam§À`m H$anmÌVoMm {ZH$f

 ~) ZmJar ~±H$m§À`m EHy$U H$O©dmQ>nmÀ`m 50% H$O} hr 25 cmI qH$dm Tier I ̂ m§S>dcmÀ`m 0.2% ̀ m _`m©Xonojm OmñV ZgUo

 H$) ~±Ho$À`m AJ«H«$_ joÌmVrc H$O©dmQ>nmMo à_mU (PCL) Q>ß`mQ>ß`mZo dmT>dyZ nwT>rc 5 dfm©V 75% n`ªV ZoUo.

 S>) H$moamoZm _hm_marÀ`m nmíd©^y_rda [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo H$O©\o$S>rÀ`m _m{gH$ hßË`m§gmR>r 31 Am°JñQ> 2020 n`ªVMr _wXVdmT> {Xë`m_wio 
H$O©Xmam§Zm {Xëmmgm {_imcm Amho.
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R>odr 6,945 7,601 7,876
(dmT>tMr Q>¸o$dmar) (2) 9 4

H$O} 5,311 5,251 4,904
(dmT>tMr Q>¸o$dmar) 4 (1) (7)

CcmT>mc 12,256 12,852 12,780
(dmT>tMr Q>¸o$dmar) 0.27 5 (0.56)

H$a d VaVyXrnyduMm Z\$m 103.60 92.53 47.67

{Zìdi Z\$m 48.53 40.26 3.07

T>mo~i AZwËnm{XV H$O} 317.16 200.80 361.07
(EHy$U H$Om©er Q>¸o$dmar) 5.97 3.82 7.36

{Zìdi AZwËnm{XV H$O} 189.86 88.58 243.78
(ZŠV H$Om©er Q>¸o$dmar) 3.66 1.72 5.09

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

(é. H$moQ>rV)

Vnerc

2019-20 `m dfm©Vrc Amnë`m ~±Ho$Mr R>iH$ d¡{eï>`o :

 · ~±Ho$À`m R>odr_Ü`o ̀ §Xm 3.62% Mr dmT> hmoD$Z Ë`m é.7,876 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMë`m.

 · H$O©dmQ>nmMo à_mU ̀ §Xm 6.62% Zo KQ>co AgyZ Vo é.4,904 H$moQ>tda Amco.

 · JVdfuÀ`m é.12,852 H$moQ>tÀ`m VwcZoV ̀ §Xm ~±Ho$Mr EHy$U CcmT>mc 0.56% Zr KQ>cr d Vr é.12,780 H$moQ>tda Amcr.

 · H$Om©Mo R>odter à_mU (CD Ratio) JVdfuÀ`m 69% déZ 62% da Amco.

 · ~±Ho$Mm ñd{ZYr é.781.22 H$moQ>tda pñWamdcm Amho.

 · ~±H$oMm NII _mM© 2020 AIoarg 2.07%BVH$m Amho.



  Vnerc 2018-19 2019-20

  A) d¡Ym{ZH$ {dZr`moJ :-

 1) d¡Ym{ZH$ amIrd {ZYr 1,006 77

 2) AmH$pñ_H$ {dnÎmr {ZYr 403 31

 3) e¡j{UH$ {ZYr 40 4

 ~) BVa {dZr`moJ :-  

 1) B_maV {ZYr 166 -

 2) AZwËnm{XV H$O©{ZYr 1,200 707

 3)  XoUJr {ZYr 5 2

 4) Jw§VdUyH$ MT>CVma {ZYr 107 -

 5)  `§Xm {Z`mo{OV cm^m§emMr {e\$mag Zmhr (Equity Shares) (JVdfu 10%) 850 -

 6) `§Xm {Z`mo{OV bm^m§emMr {e\$mag Zmhr (PNCPS) (JVdfu 8.50%) 125 -

 7) H$_©Mmar gmZwJ«h AZwXmZ (`mdfu {e\$mag Zmhr) 835 -

 8)  H$_©Mmar H$ë`mU {ZYr 90 54

 9) g^mgX H$ë`mU {ZYr 20 20

  10) {deof {ZYr (Am`H$a H$m`Xm 1961À`m H$c_ 36 (1) (viii) Zwgma) 203 70

  Vmio~§XmV XmI{dcocm ZŠV Z\$m 1 2

  EHy$U 5,051  967

(é. cmImV)

{dZr`moJ :

g§MmcH$ _§S>i df© 2019-20 H$arVm ZmoQ>rg H«$_m§H$ 2 AÝd`o Imcrc {dZr`moJm§Mr {e\$mag Amnë`m _mÝ`VoH$aVm H$arV Amho

~±Ho$Mr ñd{ZYr n`m©áVm (CRAR)

~±Ho$Zo ̀ §Xmhr Amnë`m ñd{ZYr n`m©áVoMo à_mU (CRAR) H$m`_ñdê$nr 12% hÿZ A{YH$ amIÊ`mV ̀ e {_i{dco Amho. df©AIoarg 
~±Ho$Zo Amncm (CRAR)13.17% BVH$m amIcm Amho.

Amncr ñd{ZYr n`m©áVm ~iH$Q> H$aÊ`mgmR>r ~±Ho$Zo Amdí`H$ Ë`m n`m©`m§Mm Adc§~ Ho$cm Amho.

cm^m§e :

[aPìh© ~±Ho$À`m n[anÌH$mZwgma ̀ §Xm ̂ m§S>dc d J§JmOir A{YH$ amIÊ`mH$aVm g^mgXm§Zm cm^m§e Z XoÊ`mMm AmXoe ~±H$mZm {Xcm Amho 
Ë`m_wio ̀ mdfu equity d PNCPS eoAg©da cm^m§emMr {e\$mag H$aÊ`mV Amcocr Zmhr.

^mJ ̂ m§S>dc :

31 _mM©,2020 amoOr ~±Ho$V ^aUm Pmcoco ^mJ^m§S>dc é.86.76 H$moQ>r BVHo$ Amho. JVdfu Vo é.84.65 H$moQ>r hmoVo. VgoM EHy$U 
g^mgX g§»`m 56,601 Amho.
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Preference Share Capital (PNCPS) :

~±Ho$Mo Preference Share Capital  JVdfuÀ`m é. 13.42 H$moQ>tdéZ é.13.64 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMco Amho.

R>odr g§H$cZ :

_mM© 2020 À`m dfm©V R>odt_Yo dmT> hmoD$Z Ë`m é.7,876 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMë`m. JVdfuÀ`m R>odt_Ü`o é.275 H$moQ>tMr dmT> {XgyZ Amcr. 

R>odtMo Vnerc nwT>rcà_mUo :
(é. H$moQ>rV)

 R>od Vnerc 31/03/2019 %> 31/03/2020 %

  ~MV 1,400 18.42 1,426 18.11

 Mmcy 356 4.68 300 3.80

 _wXV 5,845 76.90 6,150 78.09

 EHy$U 7,601 100.00 7,876 100.00

n§Om~ Am{U _hmamï´> ~±Ho$À`m A\$amV\$a àH$aUmZ§Va ~±Ho$À`m R>odtZm O~aXñV \$Q>H$m ~gyZ nwT>rc 6 _{hÝ`mV _wXVR>odr OdiOdi 
é.600 H$moQ>tZr KQ>ë`m, VargwÕm Amnë`m ~±Ho$Zo R>odt_Yo 3.62% BVH$s dmT> H$aÊ`mV `e {_i{dco. na§Vy H$mo{dS> 19`m OJ^a 
ngacoë`m gmWrÀ`m AmOmam_wio d gaH$maZo Kmo{fV Ho$cocr Q>mio~§Xr ̀ m gdmªMm EH${ÌV n[aUm_ R>odtda {XgyZ ̀ oVmo Amho.

~±Ho$À`m Zâ`mV dmT> hmoÊ`mgmR>r ~MV d Mmcy (CASA) ImVr dmT>{dUo JaOoMo Amho. ̀ mMr ~±Ho$cm OmU AgyZ Ë`mgmR>r J«mhH$ g§»`m 
dmT>dÊ`mMm ~±H$ g§nyU© à`ËZ H$arV Amho.

{ZYtMo Am`moOZ :

R>odtMo H$Omªer JwUmoÎma (CD Ratio) Mmcy df©AIoa 62.27% BVHo$ AgyZ ~±Ho$Mr EHy$U H$O} é. 4,904 H$moQ>r Pmcr AmhoV.

(é. H$moQ>rV)

 joÌ 2018-19 %> 2019-20 %

 d¡`{º$H$/{H$aH$moi 1,712 32.60 1,662 33.89

 Am¡X`mo{JH$ 2,437 46.41 2,313 47.17

 BVa 1,102 20.99 929 18.94

 EHy$U 5,251 100.00 4,904 100.00
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OmoIr_ ì`dñWmnZ:

~±Ho$H$S>o Amcoë`m gd© H$O©àñVmdm§Mr H$gyZ N>mZZr hmoV AgVo. `mH$arVm ~±Ho$Zo OmJ{VH$ ñVamda _mÝ`Vm {_imcoco ''CRISIL 

RAM MODEL'' Mm Adc§~ Ho$cm AgyZ ̀ m A§VJ©V é.3 H$moQ>r d Ë`mdarc gd© {H$aH$moi d KmD$H$ H$O©àñVmdm§Mr N>mZZr Ho$cr 
OmVo. Ë`m_wio H$OmªMr JwUdÎmm Mm§Jcr amIÊ`mg _XV hmoVo.

H$OmªMr JwUdÎmm :

_mM© 2020 À`m df©AIoarg ~±Ho$Mr T>mo~i AZwËnm{XV H$O} d ZŠV AZwËnm{XV H$O} AZwH«$_o é.361 H$moQ>r (7.36%) d é.244 H$moQ>r 
(5.09%) da nmohmoMcr. AZwËnm{XV H$Om©Mo à_mU H$_rV H$_r amhÊ`mgmR>r Amdí`H$ Vo gd© à`ËZ ~±H$ H$arV Amho.

n§Om~ Am{U _hmamï´> ~±Ho$darc Agcoë`m H$O©dmQ>çm_wio AZwËnm{XV H$Om©_Yo dmT> Pmcr VgoM `mda H$amì`m cmJcoë`m VaVyXr_wio 
~±Ho$À`m Zâ`mda n[aUm_ Pmcm. ~±Ho$Mr gd© H$O} hr Amdí`H$ VmaU KoD$ZM {Xcr Jocr AmhoV d H$O©dgycr H$aVm gd© H$m`Xoera 
_mJmªMm Adc§~ ~±H$ H$arV Amho.

Jw§VdUyH$ :

~±Ho$Mm H$mof {d^mJ [aPìh© ~±Ho$À`m {ZH$fmZwgma CRR d SLR {Z`{_VnUo amIÊ`mV AJ«oga AgVmo. ~±Ho$Zo `§Xm Jw§VdUyH$ g§~{YV 
ì`dhmamVyZ é.30.18 H$moQ>tMm Z\$m H$_mdcm Amho, Omo JVdfuÀ`m é.16.95 H$moQ>tnojm 78% Zr OmñV Amho. VgoM ~±Ho$Zo 
Jw§VdUyH$sdarc ì`mOmMr aŠH$_ é. 152.60 H$moQ>rdê$Z ̀ m dfu é.189.74 H$moQ>tda Zocr Amho. VgoM ~±H$ Jw§VdUyH$sdarc ì`mO Xa 
dmT>dÊ`mV gVV à`ËZerc AgVo.

V§ÌkmZ :

Amnë`m J«mhH$m§Zm AI§S> godm XoÊ`mÀ`m hoVyZo ~±H$ gVV AmYw{ZH$ V§ÌmMm Adc§~ H$aV Amho. ̂ maVr` ~±qH$J joÌmV Amnë`m ~±Ho$Mo Zmd 
AJ«JÊ` ~±H$mÀ`m `mXrV AmUÊ`mgmR>r ~±Ho$Mo ì`dñWmnZ d g§MmcH$ _§S>i gVV H$m`©erc AmhoV. CXmaUmW© 24�7 RTGS d 
NEFT V§ÌkmZmMm Adc§~, S>o{~Q> H$mS>© \$gdo{Jarcm Amim KmcÊ`mgmR>r J«mhH$m§Zm {Xcoco EMV Chip Agcoco H$mS>© BË`mXr.

~±Ho$À`m g§JUH$àUmcrgmR>r Amdí`H$ Agcoco gm`~a {gŠ`w[aQ>r \«o$_dH©$ A{YH$ ~iH$Q> H$aÊ`mgmR>r Amnë`m ~±Ho$Zo AZoH$ 
Cnm``moOZm§Mm Adc§~ Ho$cm Amho.

gmhmæ`H$ ì`dgm` H$j (Ancillary Business Department)

~±Ho$Mm hm H$j àm_w»`mZo CASA R>odtÀ`m dmT>r VgoM BVa godm CXmaUmW© {d_m, S>r_°Q>, å`wÀ`wAc \§$S> ̀ mda {Z`§ÌU R>odVmo. ~±Ho$Zo 5 
{d_m H§$nÝ`m§er H$ama Ho$co AgyZ ̀ m H§$nÝ`m J«mhH$m{^_wI godm XoVmV. ~±H$ Amnë`m J«mhH$m§Zm å`wÀ`wAc \§$S>mMr godmhr XoV Amho. ̀ m gd© 
godm§_Yohr AmYw{ZH$ V§ÌkmZmMm Adc§~ H$aÊ`mMm ~±Ho$Mm _mZg Amho.
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nwañH$ma :

df© 2018-19 gmR>r ~±Ho$cm `§Xm é. 2000 H$moQ>tdarc R>odtÀ`m {d^mJmV Xþgè`m H«$_m§H$mMm nwañH$ma ~¥hÝ_w§~B© ZmJar ghH$mar ~±H$ 
Agmo{gEeZ {c. H$Sy>Z àXmZ H$aÊ`mV Amcm.

coImn[ajU :

~±Ho$À`m gd© emIm ̀ m g_dVu d A§VJ©V coImn[ajUmÛmao Vnmgë`m OmVmV. ~±Ho$Mo g§MmcH$ _§S>i Ë`m§Zm gyMZm XoD$Z d ̀ mo½` Vr {Xem 
XmIdyZ n[ajU H$éZ KoVo. [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo Am{W©H$ df© 2018-19 ̀ mgmR>r coImn[ajU Ho$co.

XjVm {d^mJ :

~±Ho$Zo Amncm emIm{dñVma hm _hmamï´>mì`{V[aº$ BVa 4 _moR>çm amÁ`m§_Ü`o Ho$cm Agë`mZo, \$gdUyH$, Forgery `m gdmªZm Amim 
KmcÊ`mgmR>r XjVm {d^mJmMr ñWmnZm H$aÊ`mV Amcr. hm {d^mJ emIm§_Ü`o KS>coë`m A{Z`{_V àH$aUm§Mm ËdaoZo Aä`mg H$éZ 
H$_©Mmè`m§Zm Ë`m{df`r gOJ H$aVmo. ̀ m ì`[V[aº$ ñd`§àoaUoZo hm {d^mJ emIm§Zm ̂ oQ>r XoD$Z Ë`m§Mr nmhmUrhr H$aVmo.

d¡Ym{ZH$ coImn[ajH$m§Mr nwZ{Z©`wº$s :

27 OyZ 2019 amoOr Pmcoë`m ~±Ho$À`m 102ì`m dm{f©H$ gd©gmYmaU g^oV _o Ao.nr.g§P{Jar Am{U H§$. ̀ m§Mr d¡Ym{ZH$ coImn[ajH$ åhUyZ 
nwZ{Z©`wº$s Pmcr hmoVr. ̀ §Xmhr ~±Ho$Mo coImn[ajU H$aÊ`mMr H§$nZrMr BÀN>m d Ë`m§Mr ̀ mo½` nmÌVm nmhÿZM g§MmcH$ _§S>imZo nwT>rc dm{f©H$ 
gd©gmYmaU g^on`ªV Ë`m§À`m nwZ{Z©`wº$sMm àñVmd _m§S>cm Amho.

_Zwî`~i {dH$mg :

H$moUË`mhr CÚmoJmÀ`m `emV gd©g_mdoeH$ d n[aUm_H$maH$ _Zwî`~i ì`dñWmnZ _hËdmMo _mZco OmVo. H$_©Mmè`m§Mr H$m`©j_Vm 
dmT>{dÊ`mV _Zwî`~i {dH$mg ImË`mMm _hËdmMm dmQ>m AgVmo. ~±Ho$Zo Ë`m§À`m H$_©Mmè`m§À`m kmZmV ^a Q>mH$Ê`mgmR>r `§Xm E-

learning Module Mmcy Ho$co Amho. {OWo H$_©Mmar Amnë`m ñdV:À`m H$m_mÀ`m OmJr ~gyZM doJdoJù`m {df`m§daMo kmZ AdJV 
H$aVmV d ̀ m_wioM Ë`m§Zm ZdZdrZ ̀ moOZm§Mr _m{hVr {_iVo.

`§Xm 21 H$_©Mmè`m§Zr {ejUmV CÞVr, VgoM 3 H$_©Mmè`m§Zr Cƒ{ejU d 18 H$_©Mmè`m§Zr B§{S>`Z BpÝñQ>Q>çyQ> Am°\$ ~±qH$J ̀ m g§ñWoMo 
doJdoJio Aä`mgH«$_ ̀ eñdr[aË`m nyU© Ho$co. g§MmcH$ _§S>i ̀ m gdmªMr àe§gm H$arV Amho.

H$moamoZm _hm_marÀ`m H$R>rU H$mimVgwÜXm ~±Ho$À`m H$_©Mmè`m§Zr d ì`dñWmnZmZo J«mhH$m§Zm {dZmI§{S>V godm {Xcr ̀ m~Ôc g§MmcH$ _§S>i 
g_mYmZ ì`º$ H$arV Amho.

 2019-20 ̀ m dfm©V Oo ZdrZ H$_©Mmar ~±Ho$V éOy Pmco Vo nwT>rcà_mUo

  Zm§d    nX      {Z`wº$sMm _{hZm

 1) lr.{demc amR>moS>  - Mr\$ BÝ\$mo_}eZ Am°{\$ga    9 {S>g|~a 2019

 2) lr.A{_V OmdH$a  - Mr\$ BÝ\$mo_}eZ {gŠ`w[aQ>r d {S>OrQ>m`PoeZ Am°{\$ga 2 {S>g|~a 2019

 3) lr.JwUmH$a AZdoH$a -ghmæ`H$ _hmì`dñWmnH$ (_Zwî`~i {dH$mg)  12 _o 2020

 4) lr.^yfU aoJo   - _w»` ì`dñWmnH$ (R>odr d BVa ì`dgm`)  4 Owc¡ 2019

 5) lr._mohZ JwS>S>mS>   -_w»` ì`dñWmnH$ (Jmodm ŠcñQ>a)   5 OyZ 2020

 6) lr.à{dU amd   - d[að> ì`dñWmnH$ (~§Jcmoa ŠcñQ>a)   2 E{àc 2019

 7) lr.^yfU nmQ>rc  -d[að> ì`dñWmnH$ (eoVr {df`H$ ì`dgm`)  28 OmZodmar 2020
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~«±S> {~pëS>¨J :

àgma_mÜ`_m§À`m doJdoJù`m V§Ìm§Mm Cn`moJ H$éZ `§Xmhr ~±Ho$Zo Amncm ~«±S> OZ_mZgmVë`m doJdoJù`m ñVam§da nmohmoM{dcm `mgmR>r 
XÿaXe©Z, d¥ÎmnÌo, ~gWm§~o, gmd©O{ZH$ CËgd ̀ m gd© gmYZm§Mm {dñV¥VnUo dmna Ho$cm Jocm.

lr.eoR> em§Vmam_ _§Joe Hw$iH$Uu ñ_¥Vr ì`m»`mZ_mcm Xadfuà_mUo ̀ §Xmhr 18 OmZodmar 2020 amoOr ~±Ho$Mo g§ñWmnH$ lr.eoR> em§Vmam_ 
_§Joe Hw$iH$Uu ̀ m§À`m ñ_¥Vr{àË`W© 21 do ì`m»`mZnwîn Am`mo{Oco hmoVo. ñQ>oQ> ~±H$ Am°\$ B§{S>`mMo, J«wn Mr\$ BH$m°Zm°{_H$ A°S>dm`Pa S>m°. 
gm¡å`H$m§Vr Kmof `m§Zr ''Rules Versus discretion in Policy Making - learning by doing'' `m {df`mda {Xcoë`m 
ì`m»`mZmcm Mm§Jcm lmoÌydJ© CnñWrV hmoVm.

R>od {d_m :

~±Ho$À`m R>odr ̀ m ""R>od {d_m d H$O© g§ñWodarc {d_m"" (DICGC) ̀ m ̀ moOZoÛmao gwa{jV AgyZ ~±Ho$Zo é. 920.07 cmIm§Mm {då`mMm 
hám ̂ acm Amho.

VH«$ma {ZdmaU H$j :

CÎm_ J«mhH$godm XoUo d Ë`m§À`m VH«$matMo cdH$amV cdH$a {ZdmaU H$aÊ`mÀ`m hoVyZo ~±Ho$Zo VH«$ma {ZdmaU H$jmMr ñWmnZm Ho$cr hmoVr. 
doJdoJù`m _mÜ`_m§VyZ Amcoë`m gd© VH«$matMo {ZdmaU ~±Ho$Mo ghmæ`H$ _hmì`dñWmnH$ d à_wI ZmoS>c A{YH$mar lr.cú_rH$m§V XogmB© ̀ m 
H$jmMo H$m_ gm§^miV AmhoV. [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo Complaint Management System (CMS) hr VH«$ma {ZdmaUmMr AmUcocr 
ZdrZ V§ÌàUmcr Amnë`m ~±Ho$V Agë`m_wio VH«$matMo {ZdmaU Ëd[aV hmoVo.

g^mgX H$ë`mU :

Xadfuà_mUo ̀ §Xmhr ~±Ho$Zo g^mgX H$ë`mU ̀ moOZoVrc {ZYrVyZ g^mgXm§À`m 30 nmë`m§Mm Ë`m§Mr e¡j{UH$, H«$sS>m, joÌmVrc nmÌVm ~KyZ 
gËH$ma Ho$cm. 23 g^mgXm§Zm Ë`m§À`m é½Umc` IMm©gmR>r Va 52 g^mgXm§Zm Ë`m§À`m d¡ÚH$s` VnmgUrgmR>rMr _XV ~±Ho$H$Sy>Z H$aÊ`mV 
Amcr.

g§MmcH$ _§S>imVrc ~Xc :

1)  Hw$. AcH$m {XdmS>H$a ̀ m§Zr 10 OyZ 2020 amoOr Ë`m§À`m g§MmcH$nXmMm amOrZm_ {Xcm.

2) lr.ZmJoe qnJo ̀ m§Zr 22 OyZ 2020 amoOr Ë`m§À`m g§MmcH$nXmMm amOrZm_m {Xcm.

 (g§MmcH$ _§S>i ̀ m XmoKm§Zr {Xcoë`m ~±Ho$gmR>rÀ`m ̀ moJXmZm~Ôc AË`§V F$Ur Amho.)

ì`dñWmnZ :

~±Ho$Mo _w»` _hmì`dñWmnH$ lr. lr{ZdmgmamKdZ² Eg² ̀ m§Zm ̀ §Xm nwT>rc 2 nwañH$mam§Zr Jm¡adÊ`mV Amco.

1) A)  22 Zmoìh|~a 2019 amoOr 'Core Media Group' V\}$ XoÊ`mV Amcocm ''CFO Power List 2019'' nwañH$ma 

 ~) 27 \o$~«wdmar 2020 amoOr Xþ~B© _Yo Finext Awards & Conference _Yo XoÊ`mV Amcocm  Excellence in 

Finance Leaders Award hm nwañH$ma Ë`m§Zm {dÎmjoÌmVrc Ë`m§À`m ̀ moJXmZm~Ôc XoÊ`mV Amcm.

2)  ~±Ho$Mo Mr\$ BÝ\$m}_oeZ {gŠ`y[aQ>r d {S>OrQ>m`PoeZ Am°{\$ga lr.A{_V OmdH$a ̀ m§Zm {_imcoco nwañH$ma nwT>rcà_mUo

 A)  ''Top 100 CISO Award'' hm nwañH$ma Ë`m§Zm ~§YZ ~±H$, A°pŠgg ~±H$ d ñQ>oQ> ~±H$ Am°\$ B§{S>`mMo _mOr CISO lr. 
Z~m§Hw$a goZ ̀ m§À`m hñVo {_imcm. ̀ m gmohmoù`mMo à_wI A{VWr hmoVo BÝ\$m}{gg Mo gh g§ñWmnH$ lr. Z§XZ {ZcoH$Ur.

 ~) VBS Forums V\}$ XoÊ`mV Amcocm ''Digital Leaders of the year'' nwañH$ma hm nwañH$ma àW_M ̂ maVmVrc 10 
Aem ì`º$s¨Zm XoÊ`mV Amcm Á`m§Zr Amnë`m H$ma{H$XuV V§ÌkmZ joÌmV Am_ycmJ« ~Xc KS>dyZ AmUco.

 H$) Elets Technomedia V\}$ XoÊ`mV Amcocm ''BFSI Leadership Award''
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g§MmcH$ _§S>imÀ`m dVrZo
{H$emoa Hw$iH$Uu

AÜ`j

_w§~B© 
{X. 31 Owc¡, 2020

3)   ~±Ho$Mo H$m`©H$mar g§MmcH$ lr.qMVm_Ur ZmS>H$Uu ̀ m§Zr 1 gßQ>|~a 2020 nmgyZ {Zd¥Îm hmoÊ`mMo R>a{dë`mZo lr. lr{ZdmgmamKdZ² 
Eg. ̀ m§À`mH$S>o H$m`©H$mar g§MmcH$ nXmMm H$m`©^ma ~±Ho$Zo gmondcm Amho.

lÜXm§Ocr :

~±Ho$Mo H$m`Xog„mJma lr.lrH$m§V Omohar VgoM H$_©Mmar lr F${fHo$f OJZmS>o d Hw$. Apñ_Vm à^y ̀ m§Mo Xþ:IX {ZYZ Pmco. Ë`m§À`m  d ̀ §Xm 
{ZYZ nmdcoë`m g^mgXm§À`m AmËå`m§g B©ída em§Vr Xodmo Aer lÜXm§Ocr g§MmcH$ _§S>i ì`º$ H$arV Amho.

Am^ma :

~±H$ Amnco gd© g^mgX, J«mhH$, H$_©Mmar, {hVqMVH$, BVa g§ñWm d Ë`m§Mo A{YH$mar `m§Zr doimodoir {Xcoë`m ghH$m`m©~Ôc Am^mar 
Amho.

{deofV :

* [aPìh© ~±Ho$Mo _w»` _hmì`dñWmnH$, gaì`dñWmnH$ d BVa A{YH$mar dJ©.

* H|$Ð d amÁ` gaH$maMo ghH$ma ImVo

* ghH$mar ~±H$ H$_©Mmar g§KQ>Zm.

* d¡Ym{ZH$ coImn[ajH$ _o.Ao.nr. g§P{Jar Am{U H§$nZr, MmQ>©S>© AH$mD§$Q>§Q>g²

* gd© coImn[ajH$

* H¥$fr ~±qH$J _hm{dÚmc`, nwUo

* Z°eZc BpÝñQ>Q>çyQ> Am°\$ ~±H$ _°ZoO_|Q>, nwUo

* B§{S>`Z ~±Šg² Agmo{gEeZ, _w§~B©

* Z°eZc \o$S>aoeZ Am°\$ A~©Z ~±H$ d H«o${S>Q> gmo.{c., Zdr {X„r.

* _hmamï´> ñQ>oQ> H$mo-Am°n. ~±H$ \o$S>aoeZ d Agmo{gEeZ

* ~¥hÝ_w§~B© H$mo-Am°n. ~±H$ Agmo{eEeZ, _w§~B©

* H$m`XoVk, ñWmnË` emók d A{^`§Vo

* d¥ÎmnÌo, XyaXe©Z, BVa _mÜ`_o d Ë`m§Mo H$cmH$ma, VgoM ~±Ho$À`m àJVr_Ü`o Á`m§Zr àË`j d AàË`jnUo hmV^ma cmdcm Ë`m gdmªMo 
Amåhr _Z:nyd©H$ Am^ma _mZVmo.



31 _mM© 2020

31 _mM©
2020 amoOr

31 _mM©
2019 amoOr^m§S>db d XoUr

(` bmImV)

^mJ ^m§S>db  10,040 9,817

amIrd d BVa {ZYr  68,082 67,777

qàgrnc/ gãgrS>r`ar ñQ>oQ> nmQ>©Zaern \§$S> AH$m§D§$Q>  - -

R>odr   7,87,625 7,60,088

KoVbobr H$O}  25,592 15,970

BVa XoUr dgybrMr {~bo (`oUo ~mOyà_mUo)  7,150 9,574

W{H$V H$Om©darb O_m Z Ho$coco ì`mO  13,072 10,102

ì`mO XoUo  1,394 1,539

BVa XoUr  3,440 8,198

goQ>b_|Q> H«o${S>Q> AH$mD§$Q>  99 100

Z\$m / VmoQ>m  2 1

EHy$U  9,16,496 8,83,166

g§^mì` XoUr  30,617 29,595
Am_À`m `mM VmaIoÀ`m AhdmbmZwgma

A.n. g§P{Jar d H§$nZr
MmQ>©S>© AH$mD§$Q>§Q>g²

                                           ghr/- 

lr. A{^{OV g§P{Jar
^m{JXma (_o.Z§. 43230)

d¡Ym{ZH$ boImn[ajH$
_w§~B©, 31 Owc¡ 2020
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(` bmImV)

amoI   37,899 35,543

~±Ho$Vrc O_m  23,322 18,109

BÝdoñQ>_|Q> AmD$Q> Am°\$ X qàgrnc/gãgr{S>`ar ñQ>oQ> nmQ>©Zaern \§$S>  - -

_mJUr `mo½` R>od  80,785 33,489

Jw§VdUyH$  2,20,207 2,08,561

{Xbobr H$O}  4,90,352 5,25,052

BVa XoUr dgwbrMr {~bo (`oUo ~mOyà_mUo)  7,150 9,574

`oUo ì`mO…-

A) Jw§VdUyH$ d {ZYm©[aV {ZYrdarc  4,295 3,921

~) H$_©Mmar H$Omªdarc  1,081 927

H$) ~wS>rV d g§e{`V H$Om©darb  13,072 10,102

ñWmda _mb_Îmm  26,183 27,301

BVa _mb_ËÎmm  10,545 9,063

{S>\$S>© Q>°Šg A°goQ> (ZoQ>)  1,506 1,424

goQ>b_|Q> S>o{~Q> AH$mD§$Q>  99 100

EHy$U  9,16,496 8,83,166

Mm Vmio~§X

{H$emoa Hw$iH$Uu (AÜ`j)

gw{Zb Jm`Vm|S>o (CnmÜ`j)

qMVm_Ur ZmS>H$Uu (ì`dñWmnH$s` g§MmbH$)

lr{ZdmgmamKdZ Eg². (_w»` {dÎm$ A{YH$mar)

g_ra aoJo (ghmæ`H$ _hmì`dñWmnH$ - AW© d H$mof)

ZmJoe \$modH$ma

lrYa H$m_V

a_oe H$g~oH$a

(g§MmbH$)

_mb_ËÎmm d `oUr
31 _mM©

2020 amoOr
31 _mM©

2019 amoOr

H$m¡eb _wPw_Xma

cú_rH$m§V à^w

gwOmVm am§JUoH$a

 (g§MmbH$)

_w§~B©, 31 Owc¡, 2020
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31 _mM© 2020 AIoa

31 _mM©
2020 AIoarg

31 _mM©
2019 AIoargIM©

(` bmImV)

Am_À`m `mM VmaIoÀ`m AhdmbmZwgma
A.n. g§P{Jar d H§$nZr

MmQ>©S>© AH$mD§$Q>§Q>g²
                                           ghr/- 

lr. A{^{OV g§P{Jar
^m{JXma (_o.Z§. 43230)

d¡Ym{ZH$ boImn[ajH$

R>odtdarb ì`mO  52,489 47,265
KoVboë`m H$Om©darb ì`mO  1,522 1,481
H$_©Mmar d A{YH$mar dJm©Mm nJma d ^Îmo  8,669 8,143
^mS>o, H$a, {d_m d drO IM©  2,789 2,623
H$m`Xm d ì`mdgm{`H$ Vkm§Mo ewëH$  196 224
Q>nmb d Q>o{b\$moZ IM©  295 243
àdmg IM©  65 73
{heo~ VnmgUr ewëH$  125 118
XwéñVr d XoI^mb  861 828
_mb_Îmodarb Kgmam  1420 1,512
amo»`m§Mm ñWmZm§VaUmdarc Kgmam  0 15
amo»`mdarb A{Varº$ ^ma  540 491
N>nmB© d boIZ gm_wJ«r IM©  79 89
Om{hamV IM©  239 214
{Zbo}{IV ~w{S>V IM©  3544 3,799
g§JUH$ àUmcrdarc A{J«_Vm  212 798
BVa IM©  1769 1,910
ì`mdgm{`H$ Z\$m  4767 9253
   79581 79,079
VaVyXr d g§^mì` XoUr
A) ~w{S>V d g§e{`V H$Om©Mr VaVyX  3905 3,137
~) CËnm{XV H$Om©darb VaVyX  - -
H$) H$O© \o$S>rÀ`m H$mcmdYr dmT>rdarc VaVyX  46 -
S>>) nwZaMuV H$Omªdarc VaVyX  - 2
B>) aOm _mo~Xbm {ZYrdarb ì`mO  97 89
B©) Jw§VdUyH$ Kgmam {ZYrgmR>rMr VaVyX  58 13
\$) _VXmZ {ZYrMr VaVyX  8 8
J) H$a nyd© Z\$m  653 6,004
   4,767 9,253

Am`H$a  427 1,678
{S>\$S©> Q>°Šg  (81) 300
{Zìdi Z\$m  307 4,026
EHy$U   653 6,004

_w§~B©, 31 Owc¡ 2020
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(` bmImV)

g§nboë`m dfm©Mo Z\$m/VmoQ>m nÌH$

O_m
31 _mM©

2020 AIoarg
31 _mM©

2019 AIoarg

_w§~B©, 31 Owc¡, 2020

{Xboë`m H$Om©darb d Jw§VdUyH$sdarb ì`mO
1) {Xboë`m H$Om©darb ì`mO  50,638 54,919
2) Jw§VdUyH$sdarb ì`mO  17,551 14,195
3$) ~±H$m§Vrb R>odtdarb ì`mO  1,378 1,064
4) dR>Umdi d hþ§S>Umdi  3,094 3,045
5) ~w{S>V d g§e{`V H$O©{ZYrVrb VaVyXrMo à{VH«$_U  3,544 3,799
6) AmYrÀ`m dfuÀ`m {Zc}{IV ~w{S>V H$OmªMr dgwcr  42 4

BVa CËnÞ
gaH$mar amo»`m§À`m CbmT>mbrdarb Z\$m (å`wÀ`wAb \§$SmghrV>)  2,925 1,572
{dXoer _wÐm ì`dhmamdarb Z\$m  93 123
ñWmda _mb_ÎmoÀ`m {dH«$sdarb Z\$m  8 50
gwajm {VOmoardarb ^mS>o  274 250
BVa {H$aH$moi CËnÝZ  34 58

   79,581 79,079

ì`mdgm{`H$ Z\$m  4,767 9,253

   4,767 9,253
H$a nyd© Z\$m  653 6,004

EHy$U   653 6,004

{H$emoa Hw$iH$Uu (AÜ`j)

gw{Zb Jm`Vm|S>o (CnmÜ`j)

qMVm_Ur ZmS>H$Uu (ì`dñWmnH$s` g§MmbH$)

lr{ZdmgmamKdZ Eg². (_w»` {dÎm$ A{YH$mar)

g_ra aoJo (ghmæ`H$ _hmì`dñWmnH$ - AW© d H$mof)

ZmJoe \$modH$ma

lrYa H$m_V

a_oe H$g~oH$a

(g§MmbH$)

H$m¡eb _wPw_Xma

cú_rH$m§V à^w

gwOmVm am§JUoH$a

 (g§MmbH$)
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                            No.  of  Shares  Held                                                   No.  of  Members                                    %

 50  TO  100  23,778 42.01

 101  TO  500  15,614 27.59

 501 TO 5000  13,854 24.47

 5001 AND ABOVE  3,355 5.93

 TOTAL   56,601 100.00

TABLE NO. 1

(Distribution of Shareholders as on March 31, 2020)

TABLE NO. 3

(Distribution of Advances as on March 31, 2020)

(` in Cr.)

                         Amount                                         No. of Accounts                  Amount of Deposits                        %

Upto Rs. 10,000  2,95,036 63.98  0.81 

Rs. 10,001 to Rs. 50,000 1,79,578 510.57  6.48 

Rs. 50,001 to Rs. 1,00,000 1,08,722 826.71  10.50 

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 2,00,000 77,438 1,094.44  13.90 

Rs. 2,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000 62,536 2,601.67  33.03 

Rs. 10,00,001 and Above 8,823 2,778.88  35.28 

Total   7,32,133 7,876.25 100.00

TABLE NO. 2

(Distribution of Deposit Accounts  as on March 31, 2020)

(` in Cr.)

                         Amount                                         No. of Accounts                      Balance O/S                                 %

Upto Rs. 25,000  777 0.75  0.02 

Rs  25,001 to Rs. 1,00,000 1,690 10.05  0.20 

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 2,00,000 1,542 22.81  0.47 

Rs. 2,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000 6,574 340.01  6.93 

Rs. 10,00,001 to Rs. 25,00,000 4,642 762.79  15.56 

Rs. 25,00,001 to Rs. 50,00,000 2,144 744.30  15.18 

Rs. 50,00,001 and Above 1,666 3,022.81  61.64 

TOTAL  19,035 4,903.52  100.00 
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